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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Ethos Limited
1. Report on the Audit of Ind AS financial statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Ethos Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements™).

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profit or loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure I” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(ii) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

B( “Annexure 117,
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements. Also refer to note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However, amounts as
appearing in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
disclosed. Also refer to note 42 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Regjstration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Prayin Tulsyan
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 23 April 2018 Memibership No: 108044
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Annexure ‘I’ referred to in paragraph 5(i) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Fthos Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(b)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has physically
verified its movable fixed assets during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material
and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company does not have any

immovable property. Accordingly, para 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the inventories, except goods-in-
transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. For stocks
lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained. As
informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records were not material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or
security as specified under Section 185 of the Act. Further, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in relation to investment made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the rules framed there under where applicable, the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India as applicable with regard to deposits accepted from the public. As informed
to us, there have been no proceedings before the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal and Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this
matter and no order has been passed by any of the aforesaid authorities in this regard.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the activities performed by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Value added tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, cess,
Goods and services tax and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the
year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Value
added tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, cess and Goods and services tax and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales tax, Value
added tax, Income tax, service tax, cess, duty of Customs and Goods and services tax which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the Dues disputed* deposited which the the dispute is
statute (Rs. in (Rs. in amount pending
lakhs) lakhs) relates
Income Tax | Income Tax | 7.32 7.32 Assessment Income tax
Act, 1961 Year 2012- | Appellate
13 Tribunal
Income Tax | Income Tax | 31.16 31.16 Assessment Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Year 2013- | Income tax
14 (Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax | 52.02 52.02 Assessment Commissioner of
Act, 1 961 Year 2014- Income tax
15 (Appeals)
Finance CENVAT 485.53 170.00%* Financial Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 credit Year 2008- | and Service Tax
(including 09 to 2010- Appellate
penalty) H Tribunal

#Amounts as per demand order including interest and penalty, whichever indicated in the order
* Paid under protest by utilising the balance in CENVAT credit.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to its bankers or to any
financial institutions. The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from government and has
not issued any debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the term loans taken by the Company has been applied for the purposes for
which they were obtained. As informed to us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit for
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Thus paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has duly complied with the
requirements of section 42 of the Act, in respect of preferential allotment of shares made during the
year. The Company has neither made any private placement of shares nor issued any fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. However, proceeds from issue of equity shares amounting to
Rs.1,500 lakhs which has been received during the year, remains unutilized as at 31 March 2018. Also
refer to note 18(ii) to the Ind AS financial statements. Further, the amount received during the year
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with him during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no.: 101248W / W-100022

Pravin Tulsyan
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 23 April 2018 Membership No: 108044




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure 11 referred to in paragraph 5 (ii)(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Ethos Limited being report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ethos Limited (“the
Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial statements and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
irAl registration no.: 101248W/ W-100022

=

Pravin Tulsyan
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 23 April 2018 Membership No.: 108044



Ethos Limited )
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

Al amannes i & fukhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

As at As at As at

MNote 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,646 80 948.93 1,182.17
Capital work-in-progress 3 36 835 2271 3870
Other intangible assets 4 27.44 41.05 54.39
Financial assets
- Investments 3 4294 - -
- Loans 6 910,75 T02.37 591.45
- Other financial assets 7 21503 85.80 16817
Income tax assets (net) 8 12324 200 86 179.45
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 483 66 51596 283.03
Oihier non-current assels 10 51975 463.28 514.84
Total non-current assets 4,006, 46 3001002 3.012.20
Current assets
Inventonies 11 17,103.29 16 ROR 58 16,520 94
Fimancial assets
- Trade receivables 12 64562 16141 33320
- Cash and cash equivalents 13 71891 G05.98 466,10
- Other bank balances 14 - - 1768
- Loans B 367.99 5167 433.23
= Other financial asscis 7 951 1.43 1.3
ther current assets 15 213040 194.32 216.31
Total current assets 20,975.72 18,519.39 17,998.77
Total Assets 24,982.18 21,519.41 21,000.97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1] 1590 86 132039 1,235.68
Ohler eguity 17 7.570.10 516327 464851
Total equity 9,160.96 6.483.60 5,884.19
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
Fnancial habvlines
- Borrowings I8 1,109 29 1,068, 70 1,027.31
Provisions 19 14224 120.18 77.69
Total non-current liabilities 1,251.53 1. 188.88 1,105.00
Current linbilities
Financial Liabilities
- Bormowings 18 4,098 84 536327 540610
- Trade payables 20 7.723:17 6.464.20 687322
- Onther finaneial labilities 2] |.678.34 21713 1,051.72
Other current liabilities 32 1,003 18 |,099.21 H88.53
Provisions & 269 297 221
Current tax habilites (net) 23 6347 - -
Total current liabilities 14,569,69 13,846.87 14,021.78
Total liabilities - 15,821.22 15,035.75 15,126.78
Fotal Equity and Liabilities 2498218 21,519.41 21.010.97
Stgnificant accounting policies 2
Notes 10 the Ind AS financial statements 3-43

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Four BSR & Co. LLP
Cicirtervd Accountants
rn Registration No. 1O1248W/W-100022

Menjbership No. © 108044

Place: New Delln
Date: 23 April 2018

e amd on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ethos Limited

Mencigring [Director
DIN: (03012158

Rafa Sekl

Place: New Delln
Date 23 April 2018

Tt Fanancral Officer

Anil Khanna
{wrector
DIN: 00012232

Pty Secredary



Ethos Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amownts in ¥ lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue from operations 24 3560919 3248941
Other income 25 17576 207.62
T'otal Income 35,784.95 32,697.03
EXPENSES
Purchase of stock-in-trade 26 27.309 88 2567627
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 27 (204.71) (377 64)
Emplovee henefits expense 28 2.268 99 2,037 04
Finance costs 29 h58 27 814 67
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 407 36 379 04
Other expenses 3l 4.824.21 501243
Total expenses 35,264.00 33,541.81
Profit/(loss) before tax 520.95 (844.78)
Tax expense 32
- Current tax charge 8139 -
- Deferred tax charge/(credit) 3993 (236.11)
Profit/{loss) for the year 399.63 {608.67)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that will not be reclassified o profit or loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 677 {22.03)
Income tax relening to ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (2.36) 6 81
Total other comprehensive income/{ expense) 4.41 (15.22)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 404.04 (623.89)
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of Rs. 10 (previous vear Rs. 10})] 33
Basic (Rs ) ] .94 (7.15)
Diluted (Rs ) 194 (7.1%)
Significant accounting policies 2
Nates to the Ind AS financial statements 3-43

The accompanving notes form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chagrered Accountants

Pravi® Tulsyan

ship No. - 108044

Place New Delhi
Date: 23 Apnl 2018

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ethos Limited

lamaging Dirvector
DIN: (00012158

Chref Financial Officer

Place New Delhi
Date: 23 April 2018

Anil Khanna

Director
DIN 00012232

ipany Secretary



Ethos Limited
Caush Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

FAN amomnts in 2 lakhy, except for share data and if oervise siined)
For the year ended
31 March 2018
A. CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the year enided
31 March 2007

Profit / {loss) before tax §20.95 (%44 78)
Ad)ustments for
Dep and 7 407 16 37904
Property, plant and equipments wntten off (neth 34.39 a7.51
Share based payments 1% 1336
Finance costs 63827 Bl4.67
Interest meome (9374 (B3.48)
Provisions no longer required written hack (6% 72) (730
A af on forward exchang 5 797 2931
A wation of prepaid expe 67 76 709 46
Unrealized foreign exchange loss / (gain) 4342 3271
Advances | deposits writien off 55 84 146
Operating cash Mow before working capital changes 1.654.06 39652
Adjustmems for
{Increase)’ decrease in loans (146411 16 89
{Incrense)/decrease n other financial assets (131 97) 91 90
{Inerense) decrease m other non-current assets (3593) 4257
(Increase) in inventories (20471 (37764}
{Increase)decrease m trade receivables . (484.21) 171.79
{Increase) in other current assets [1,998.33) (10.39)
Increase in provisions 2856 2122
Increase/ (decrease) in trade pavables 1273 18 {338 940)
{Decrease)’ increase m other financial habilities (49.85) 11.54
{Decrease) morease m other current habilies (%6 03) 410.69
Cash {used in) / generated from operating activities (183.63) 430,19
Income tax pard (net) 68 69 (30.42)
Net cash (used in) [ geverated from operating activities (114.94) 405,77
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acqusition of property, plant and equipment 1,156.04) (263.62)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1003 481
Payment for purchase of investments (42 94) =
Rep of foans by empl 4.09 X285
Bank deposits made - 1768
Interest recewed 607 Bo7
Net cash used in investing activities [1,178.79) {209.61)
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from mssue of equity share capital [including premium ) 222550 1,200.00
Proceeds from bormowings 186001 81362
Repavment of borrowings (2.597.75) (1,008 24)
Interest pard (585.10) {761.65)
Net ciash fow from linancing activities 1, 106,66 243.73
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (187.07) 439,89
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year 005,98 40008
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the vear 718.91 D595
Nutes :
| Cosh and cish equivalents include
Balanice wath hiinks in current socounts 22072 71318
Cheques, drafts on hand 166 3% 4377
Cash on hand 9813 86 54
Credit cards recervahle 23147 624G
Cash and cash balance ar the end of the year 71 S_gll= DOE98
2 The cash flow has been p i m 4 with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indmn A u Sundard -7 on "8 on
Cash Flows *
3 Refer note no 2 for significant accounting policies
4R | of & ts of habil 10 ¢ash Dows ansimg from financing actvities
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
Borrowings at the beginning of the year (current and non current) 0,864 (2 T.058.64
Proceeds from borrowings | 864 (01 81362
Repayment of borrowimgs (2397 73) {1,008 24)
Borrowings ot the end of the vear (current and non current) 6330 28 6,864 02

As per out report of even date attached

eredd Avcountanty Ethos Limited
egistration no 101 248WW. 100022

M\

T A rcator
DIN No 00012158

Place. New Delhi Place. New Dellu
Date: 23 Apnil 2018 Date 23 Apnil 2018

or BSR & Co LLP For and on behall of the Board of
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Reporting entity

Ethos Limited (‘Ethos' or 'the Company'), a subsidiary of KDDL Limited, is a limited liability company and was
incorporated on 5 November 2007. The Company’s business consists of trading of watches, accessories and luxury
items and rendering of related after sale services.

Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation
i) Statement of compliance

These Ind AS financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (India
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s financial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS), Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. The transition was carried out
from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. An explanation of how
the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flow
of the Company is provided in Note 31.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 23 April 2018.

ii) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, up to two places of decimal, unless otherwise
indicated.

ifi) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
(including derivative instruments)
Net defined benefits (assets)/liability Fair value of the plan assets less present value of defined
benefits obligations
iv) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in
current and future periods.

L
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Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 2(b) and 3 — Assessment of useful life of Property, plant and equipment
- Note 2(b) and 4 — Assessment of useful life of Intangible assets

- Note 2(f), 19 and 38 — Provisions and contingent liabilities

- Note 2(m) and 8 — Income taxes

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2018 is included in the following notes:

- Note 37 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 19 and 38 — Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies, key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 2(p)(ii) — Impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;

- Note 2(p)(i)- Impairment of financial assets

- Note 9- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used;

- Note 2(v)- Fair value measurement

- Note 37- Shared based payments

v) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to
measurement of fair values. This includes the top management division which is responsible for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, is used to measure fair values,
then the top management division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial statements
is included in the respective notes

__b) Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Co

ion and measurement
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Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working cond!tluq fc?r
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is

located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at
the reporting date.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance sheet date, are shown under other non-current
asssets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the IGAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment as on 1 April 2016.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful

lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specified in Schedule 1I to the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs except for
office equipments being mobile phones which are depreciated over the estimated life of two years from the date of
capitalization on the basis of internal evaluation by the management basis which the management believes that this
useful life best represents the period over which these asset will be used.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated under the straight line over the period of lease.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. In view of the management, these
rates are indicative of the estimated economic useful lives of the fixed assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from (upto) the date on which asset is ready
for use (disposed of).

Derecognition

operty, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
Wséand disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of a tangi ';E ate

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
g Statement of Profit and Loss.
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¢) Other intangible assets
Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of Intangible asset
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use.After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible assets
recognised as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the IGAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such
intangible assets.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in statement of profit and loss. The estimated
useful life of Computer Software (ERP) is 6 years.

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if
appropriate.

Derecognition

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and
disposal.

d) Inventories

Inventories which comprises traded goods which are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurring in acquiring the
inventories, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

e) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., salaries and wages, short term
compensated absences and bonus etc., if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards
for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-
market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 102 Share based payment to equity instruments that vested after the date
of transition to Ind AS pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101.

Post-employment benefits

-Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (‘ESI") to
Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

-Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Gratuity is a defined
benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has been entrusted to the Life Insurance Corporation of India
(‘LIC"). The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the
fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined benefit liability, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service (“past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the

statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

Other long term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. Such
obligation such as those related to compensate absences is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial

valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. Remeasurements gains or lossess are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of past event, the Company has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

f) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost. Expected future losses are not provided for.

g) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a deemed equity contribution if no premium was paid when guarantee
is received. Deemed equity contribution is initially measured at fair value.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between
the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

h) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
i) Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

j) Revenue
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, exclusive of taxes as applicable such as sales tax, value added taxes (VAT) service tax and
goods and service tax, and is net of returns, trade discounts, quantity discounts and cash discounts. This inter alia
involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms.
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.

The timing of transfers of risk and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of sale. For sales of watches,
such transfer occurs when the product is handed over to the customer at the retail stores. Generally for=such
products, the buyer has no right of return.
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Customer loyalty programmes

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of initial sale
is allocated between the award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated to award credits
is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Company has fulfilled its
obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer probable
that the award credits will be redeemed.

Sale of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss when the services are rendered and the related costs
are incurred.

k) Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to :

- The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- The amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

1) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as a part of
cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

m) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination or an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current lax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available against which
they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

n) Leases

At the inception of each lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease based
on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest
in the Company are classified as finance leases, A finance lease is recognised as an asset and a liability at the
commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payment made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a strai ght-line basis over the period of the lease unless

the payment are structure to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

o) Financial instruments
i, Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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ji. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) ~ equity investment;
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On the recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
FVTPL any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
amortised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in statement of profit

or loss
Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
at FVOCI effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are

recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On de- recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to
statement of profit or loss.

Equity investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
at FVOCI income in statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised =
OCI and are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss. \Z_O/“’




Ethos Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL, if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. De-recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contact is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liability when the fair value is negative

p) Impairment
i.  Impairment of financial asset
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-

impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.
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Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and the cash flow that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtors do
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedure for recovery of amounts due.

ii)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash
flows are grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
/?'m The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and fair value less
97‘ { "\ cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present val;:i&ip '

@ \pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of money and the risks specj &f&
GU (or the asset). ;f o~
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The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not
generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount 1s
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

q) Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences on restatement/settlement of all monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

r) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s
other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

s) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
demand deposits held with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

t) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

u) Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effe
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the begin
period, unless they have been issued at a later date
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v) Recent Accounting pronouncements

MCA vide notification dated 28 March 2018, notified Ind AS 115,”Revenue from Contracts with Customers™. The

core principal of the guidance that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The new standard also will result in enhanced disclosures about revenue,
provide guidance for transaction that were not previously addressed comprehensively (for example, service revenue
and contract modifications) and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements.

The new revenue recognition standard is effective from 1 April 2018. The Company basis its preliminary assessment
does not believe that this new standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.
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CAN et (n & Bakhs, exeept for shave devs aned if othepwise sated)

)

d)

)

(i

(i

(i
(iv)

Sty held by wlvimete hohfing company hedding compeny and or tote abstdiories avsochics

As at Asat As at
31 Murch 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Number of Amount Number of Amount Number af Amaunt
shares shares shares
Faguny whares of B 10 eacly fuffy poid up
=kDDL Linnted (holding company and ultimate holding company) 10,223,508 1,022:35 8,503,736 q50.37 7.056,642 765 66
~Mahen Distribution Lunited (fellow subsidiary 2,293,450 22932 2,293,150 12932 2,293,150 22932
4% cnmtelatve compulsony comveriible ireforence shares of Ry 130 cach
fuelly peried wpr
SKDOL Limited (holding company and ultimate holding company) 19,230 2500 19,230 25,00 19.230 2500
129 exmmilative complsory comvertible proference shares of Re 10 cach
fuiliy peried up
~KDDL Limited (holding company and ultmate holding company ) . . 136,363 15000 136 363 5600
Dierailly aof sierrchenlders hedding maore than 594 shaves uf o cliss of shares
As Asar As
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Number of " holding in Number of & holding in Number of % helding in the

shares the chass hares the class shares class
Fepany shares of Ry 30 cach fully patof wp hadef by
KDDL Limed 10,223 508 64 2t 4,503, 7o [ ] 7,656,642 al 9
~Mahen Drstobution Linted 2,293,150 1441 1293150 1740 2203 150 IR 56
=My Mukul Mahavr Agrawal B10.067 .09 10,067 (1] #0067 b 56
{4 [l OOy hie preference shares of Ry 130 cach
frolly povscd sepy b ek by
“Sicth Sense India Opportunimies - | 248,373 43058 248373 4310 248373 43 10
My Mkl Vora 115,462 2000 115462 20000 115462 20 00
Mr R K Saboo 46,185 .00 46,155 LA 46,155 .00
Dream Diginal Technoky Private Lunsted (DDTPL) @) 693 133 3462 (] 38462 670
Mis: Anuradia Saboo 41308 . 733

@ DIOTPL was a public bmnited company Gll 01 June 2006, With effect from 02 June 2016, DDTPL is a private limited company

{29 crmmlanive compmilyory comversible preference shiares of By 10 cach
Srefby pevsid sepe v il by

Pulkn Sekhsaria - - 272,718 b B} 270728 479
KDDL Lumted - . 136,303 1240 | 36 363 1240
-Cimnga Properties Provate Linited - . 100, 00003 800 100,000 LXTY
Mr RK Saboo - - 90,910 816 90,910 826
Mr ¥ Saboo - - Q0,900 826 91, SHH) 826
“Mehak Finpro (Indin) Private Limited - - LT B 16 LA L] 826
<Saboo Coatings Private Limited - = 01,505 B2 90,904 &6
Ritu Prashom Khenka - - G B2h 90,9k 826

Bemms shaarcs, shives baybock and tsue of shares withont considenstion béing recefved in cash tduring five years immediarely preceding 31 Marck 2015)

During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2018 (‘the penod’), nerther any bonus shares have been issued nor any shares have been bought back tn additon, durmg the penod. no shares hive boen
issued for consideration other than cash excapt as follows

The Company during the current year ended 31 March 2008 converted | 100,010 12% cunwlative compulsory convertible preference shares of face value of Rs |10 mia 1,100,010 equity shares of Rs 10
ench a1 a premuum of Rs |00 each. Further, 21,250 equary, shares of Rs 111 each had been tssued under employee stock option plans for which only esercese price had been recerved m cash

The Company had during the vear ended 31 March 2015 redeemed 69,228 12% cumulative oy Iy convertible pref shares of Rs. 05 gach Owt of these 49 998 sharés were redeomed by vway of
payment and balance shares were comverted into 19,230 equity shares of Rs [0 each at o presmum of Bs 55 euch.

The Company had durng the vear ended 31 March 2015 sssued 76,924, 14% cumulative compulsonly convertible preference shares of Rs |30 each for consideration other than cash
During the yearended 31 March 2016, 56,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each had been issued under employes stock oprion plans for which only sxercise price had been received in cash

Ewmplovee stock opion plas
Terms mtached 1o stock options granted 1o employees of the Company are desonbed m note 17 (1v) ding share based pay

Sharres eserved for pme imder options and soniraet

As il At Asat
31 Manch 2018 31 March 2007 I April 2016
Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares <hares
Under Ethos Emplovee Stock opton Schene-2003 0 350,000 equity shares of 171750 1718 231,500 2318 231,500 30
Rs 10 each, at an exercse price of Rs 120 per shiare { Refer note 37 (v))
For 14% pulsorly riible prefe shares. 576,923 equity shares of 576,923 5769 76,921 AT 60 576,923 5769

Rs 10 cuch
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3 Prop plant and i andd capital work-in-progress

Reconciliation of carrying

Vehicles| ro|  Covital .s.iﬂ Total

Deemed cost (gross carvying amount) (refer note c)

Balance s at | Apnl 2016 460 63 LERTS 64 73 3674 277 118217 70 122087
Additions 50 954 B4 8 19 02 : 202 89 50 36 28328
| Disposals (8427) = - (0.82) (4 88) (89.97) (66.35) {15632y
Balance as at 31 March 2017 46586 98,02 640.54 5794 2283 1.295.09 271 1.317.80
Balance 1 a1 1 Apnl 2017 163 86 591 649 54 5794 2283 1,293 09 27 131780
Additions 57721 221 30790 5154 197 18 1,136 04 336,35 147230
Dispesils (17.19) = (43.08) (3.47) (2157 (83 28) (32221) 1407 49)
Ralance as at 31 March 2018 1.025.38 101,13 914,30 10601 198,44 134588 3685 2.382.70

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at | Apnl 2016 - - - - - - = =

Deprecation for the vear 2027 2R 137 37.31 729 36381 - 36381
| Drsposals Li6.76) - - (0.17) (072} {17.65) - (1765}
Balance as at 31 March 2007 15601 .72 3704 657 Jdb_ 16 = 3616
Balance as at | Apnl 2017 186.01 172 74 b 57 3616 - 346 16
Depreciation for the year 224.10 583 29.90 13.02 39418 - ELER T
| Dizposals (16 56) - (2 30) (842) (41.29) - (41 29)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 393,55 855 64.74 1517 699,05 - (94,04
Carrying amounts {net)
AL | April 2016 4ol).6 894 5647 397 T 1,182 387 1,220.86
At 31 March 2007 17985 96.20 53582 0,79 16.26 945.93 n.m 971.63
At 31 Manch 2018 63133 92.58 69335 41.27 187.27 164680 3685 1.683.65
Notes:
a Refer note 1§ for mfarmatiin on property. plant and equipment pledged as secunty by the Company
b Refer note 38 for disclosure of contractial commitments for the scquisition of property, plant and equspment
¢ Refer note 34 1 {a) for & reconcihinhon of deermed cost as comadered by the Company pursuant 10 transition provision under lnd AS 101
4 Other imtangible assets
Reconciliation of carrving amouni
Computer Softwares Total
Deemed cost (gross carrving amount] (refer note d)
Balance as a1 | Apnl 2016 44,39 54 39
Additions | &9 |85
Balance as at 31 March 2017 50.28 560.18
Balance as at | Apnl 2017 56 2% %6 28
Additsons = E
| Disposals (0.69) (069)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 £5.50 S5.59
Amartisation
Balance as a1 | Apni 2016 = =
Amortisation for the year 1523 1523
i 5 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2017 15.23 1523
Balance as at | Apni 2017 1523 1523
Amortisation for the vear . 1318 1318
Disposals {0.26] (0 26)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 18.15 28.15
Carrying (uel)
At 1 April 2016 544 544
At 31 March 2017 41.05 41405
At 31 March 2018 2744 27,44
Notes:

d Refer note 34 1 {a) for o reconcihation of deemad cost as considerad by the Company pursuant to transstion provasion under nd AS 101
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5

Investments

Norscurrent mvestment

Ulangused mvestmoent

Subssdary

Investment in partnership fimt (ot cost) #

# Investment m Cogmtion Digital LLP

Partmers
Ethos Limited
Mr. Pranay Saboo {bereficial owner e Ethos Limited)

Laans*
Temsccnrcd, comsidfered good wnlesy otherise siafed)

Security deposits
Loan 1o employees

*The Company's exposure to credit and currency nisk, and koss allowances related 10 other non curtent financial assets are disclosed in note 35

Other financial assets

Deposits with vngnal materty of more than 12 months #
Denvative financial instruments
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits

# These deposits melude resticred bank deposits wmounting to Rs, 20501 (31 March 2007 Rs 79 1001 Apnl 2016 Rs95 11) on aceount of deposis pledped s securry for bank guarantees

Income tax assets (net)

Advance income tax and tax deducted at source

{net of provision for meome-tax Re 204 27 (31 March 2007 Ry 204 27,04
April 2016 Rs 204 27)

Dheferved tax assels (net)
Significant components of the Company's net deferred tis are as [Dllows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred rax habilibes
Net deferred tax assets

2016-2017

Deferred tax assers’

eferred ey avsers on

Property, plant and equipments and Intangible sssets
Provasion for emploves bensfits

Provision - others

Oihers

Taox losses carried forward

Net deferred tax wsser

2017-2018

Deferred wx assets

Difervod wax assers on

Propeny, plant and equipments and Intangible assets
Provision for emploves benefits

Provision - others

Oithers

Tis losses earmed forward

Net deferred tax asset

As at Asat Asamt
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2006
42.94 - -
43 94 - =
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 216
Totnl capital " Total capital Total capital
eontribution M) coniribution Share i) cantribution Share (%)
4294 (TR = R
. 041 - 2 -
4294 100 00 .
As al Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 01 April 2006
Current Non-curvent Current Now-current Current Non-curvent
Iod T 908 03 353 56 9 45 408 28 581 51
323 272 ERY 592 2495 T8
347 99 910.75 35767 23T 43323 4491 44
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 Mauch 2017 01 April 2006
Cwrrent Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current
. 215,08 4586 - 168 17
180 - - - 9,58 -
67 - 141 - 1.73 -
9.5] 21503 143 85 86 131 168 17
Asat Asal Asat
31 March 2018 31 Muarch 2017 01 April 2016
12324 209 840 | 7945
123.24 209 86 17945
As at Asal As at
31 March 2018 31 Murch 2017 01 April 2016
48586 525 9% 183 03
483,66 525 9% 183.01
Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing balance
profit or loss other
comprehensive
ineome
144 63 T2.63 . 21736
3268 - 681 3949
ELR ] 872 - 6806
2704 1588 am
1844 138.9] . 15735
283.03 61l a8l 42596
Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in other  Closing balance
profit or loss comprehensive
incame
217.26 9038 < 307 64
1049 1357 {2 36) 5070
68 6 1346 . Bl 52
437 - 4179
15735 {157.35) - =
525.96 {39.93) {2 36) 483 66
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1.

As
Other non-earvent assets 31 March 2008
(T insecared. comaderad good wniexs otherwse wated)
Capial ndvances
- 1o nithers 184 24
Advances other than capital advances
- Prepaid expenses 11698
- CENVAT credit receivable 48 56
- Ul recevable { refer note 35) 170,00
- Insiranee elwm receivable -
$19.74
As at
Inventories 31 March 2018
(ke devwer ef wost aomd et realisable valie, winehever (s Jower)
Stovck-in-trade [inchuding goods-m-trnnsn Bs 386 60 011 March 20117 R 1195
01 Apeil 2006 Rs 57 23| 17,103 29
17,103 24
Asat
Trade receivables 31 Murch 2018
(P sered convdersd good wnlvss otferwise sated)
Trade recervables #
- Retared parties (refer 10 note 39) 51575
- Others 12987
45 62

0

# The Company's exposure 1o credit and currency risk, and lnss allowances refated fo trade recewables are disclosed n note 15

As
Cash and cash eguivalents 31 March 2018
Balances wath hanks n
- current accounts 22072
Cheques. drafis on hand 166,349
Cash on hand k13
Others
- eredit cards recevabile 233467
71641

Asat
3 Mareh 2017

9594
9147
G9.20
170.00
0z
463 28

Asat
31 March 2017

|6, 898 58
| &, B5H 58

Asal
31 March 2017

BRI
10833

16141

As i
31 March 2017

GERE
43.77
B 54

6249
905 9%

* ncludes R NilEHE Maich 2007 R 3000 lakhs, | Apal 2006 Rs M) being the amount wnutihized out of equity shares ssued towards prefierential allotment

Asat
Ohher hank balances 31 March 2018
Deposits with ongimal maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months =

Asat
Other current assets 31 March 2018
(Hrsecured copstelered pood unless athenwse wared)
Prepind expenses LARCIE
Advances for supply of goods 200,95
Advances 1o employees 2047
GST credit receivable 1,760 45
Duty drawback recoverable 18 81
Other advances 8206

2,130 40

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat
3 Mareh 2017

13977
5178
280

194 32

As at
N1 April 2016

175,54
7745
170,00
68 TR

S|4.84

Asat
01 April 2016

16,520 94

16,520 94
———

Asat
01 Apeil 2016

2758
A0S 62

335.20

As ar
01 April 2016

10565
631
23200

102 08
466 10

As ot
W1 April 2006

1768
1768

As
01 April 2016

134 89
6ty 0§
14.79
2l63]
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sxcepn for share dase and of othenwise siateds

Equity share capital
Asat Asat As at
31 Mureh 2018 31 March 20017 1 April 2016
Number of Amouni Number of Amount Numiber af Amount

shares shares shares
Autheived
Expuuty shares of Bs 10 each 30, 700,000 3,070 60 13,750,000 1375 00 13,050, (04 1,305 00
14% Latiy puilsory ible preference shares of Rs |30 each 876,024 750 00 576,924 T80 1) 576,924 750,00
1% lative compulsory tible prref shares of R 110 each 1,200,000 1,320 00 1,200,000 1,320.00 1,204,000 1,320.00
12% cumulinive optianally ible profirence shares of Rs 68 aach . - 300,000 195 00 100,000 195 00
12% lative red ble prafe shares of Rs 100 each - - 1,000,000 1,000 00 - .
12% non ¢ lative red bie shares of Re. 100 each 1,000,004 ) 4K (M0 1,300,000 1,500 00 - =

33,476,924 G‘IJCI'.(D_ 18,326,924 140,00 15,126,924 3,570.00
Fuswrced, swbserbed and flly poted v **
Equity shares of Rs 10 each i} 15,908, 564 1,590 86 13,203,895 1.320.39 12,356,801 1.235.68
14% lative pulsary ble pref e shares of Rs 130 each # i) 576,923 T80 00 376,923 TRD.00 576,923 T50.00
12% lative compulsory bie prefi shores of Rs 110 ench#  (m) - = 1,100,010 121001 1,100,010 1.210.01

16,485,487 1,340.86 14,880,828 3,280.40 14,033,734 3,195.6%
* includes 16,950,000 shares p 10 transfer of autt | share capial from Rs 1,695 preference shares to equivilant number of equity shares of face valus of Rs 10 each
5 300,000 12% ! feemable pref: share of Rs 100 each fully pad up, which were ssued dunng the previous year ended 31 March 2016, have boen classified as financinl linbility
(Borrowmys - current). These 12% 4 i bl pref shares have been redeemed on 23 August 2017 (refer note 14)

i classified as "other equity” i the statement of changes m equity

Teighs. prefercnce amd reseriction attached o dharcy

(i) The Compary has only one class of equity shares kaving n par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The voting nehts of an equity shareholder on show of

hand or through proxy shall be i proportion to his share of the pard up capital of the Company. The Company declares and pavs dividends i Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
fexcept for intenm dividend) i subject to approval of the sharcholders m the ensuing Annual General Meeting In the event of Liqudation of the Company the holders of equity shires will be entitled 1o

recenve the remaining assets of the Compumy afier distrik of all pref | . The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(i) The preference shareholders do ot hold any voting nghts. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirsctors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Where dividend on cumulative preference shares is not declared for a financial year the entith thereto 15 carmed forward wherzas in the case of non-
cumulative preference shares the entitlement for thot year lapses In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of preference dhares will be entitled 10 recene the amount of their prefierence capisl
contribution before distribution of the remainmg mssets 1o the equity shareholders
Conversion terms of 576,921 14% L Isorily ihil shares of Bs 130 gach fully paid up 15 5§ (Five vears from the date of allotment m equal number of equity shares of face value
of Rs 10 each ar a prenmum of Rs 120 (and any cumulative dradend remaiming unpaid) at the end of 5 (Five) vears Accordmgly, these preference shares will be converted in various tranches commencing 6
November 2019,
During the current year ended 11 March 2008, 1.100,010 12% cumul compulsory blz preference shares of Rs 110 each have been converted anto 1 100,010 exuity shares of Rs. 10 zach at a
premium of Rs. 100 per share

(i) Fmipfence Stock oprow - Terms attached 1o stock options granted to emplovees of the company and its holding company are described m note 37 hng employee share based payments.
feeconciliation of mumber af shives omtstamdingg ar the begioming amd end of the peparting year

As mil Asat Asm
31 March 2018 31 Murch 2007 I April Xls
Nuniber of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
shires shares shares
1h Equity shares of Rs 10 gach fully paid up
Al the beginning of the vear 13,203,895 1,32039 12,356,801 1,235 68 11531371 115314
Add wsued during the year 1,583 409 158 14 BAT 00 B4 71 T69 430 7694
Add issued f 10 of 12% 1 compulsory
convernble preference shares I 00010 1o on . s . 5

Add iseued on exercise of emploves stock options 21,250 213 - - 56,000 5.60
At the end of the yeu 15,908,564 159056 13,203,805 1,320.39 12,356,801 1,235.68
iy 1495 cumulative campulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 130 each
fually, pasd up )
Al the begimning of the year 576,923 750 00 576,923 750 00 576,923 750,00
At the end of the year 576,923 75000 .“?2!911 TEOO0 S76,49238 750,00
il 12% kati fulsory ihle preference shires of Rs 110 ¢ach
At the begmnmg of the year 1100010 1,.21001 100,010 12100 1010 L2om
Add redeemed durmg the year 1,100,010y 2o . - . -
At the end of the year - = 1,100,010 1.210.01 1,100,010 1,210.01
3,00,000 12% fative reds ble prefi share of Rs 100 gach fully pad up, which were ssued during the previous vear ended 31 March 2016, have been classified as financial lability (Borrowings -

current] These 2% cumul redeemabl fi ¢ shures have been redeemed on 23 August 2017 (refer note 18)
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Asat
31 March 2017

1.960.0]

1,960.0]

1451

14.51

51.08
231 ¥

41

1,67
167

1079 90
1,115 29

4,195.19

(A anponmn i 3 fakles, excopt for share dasceand if omherwise siared) ¥
Asa
17. Other equity 31 March 2018
(1) Compmalsey ¢ bl commlative pref; © wharey
Balance at begmning of the year® 1.960.0
Issue of equity shares on accomt of conversion (L2060
Balance at end of the year TS0.00
* Refer 1o Note 16 (aln)
() Sdewmmred capial comtibution
Balance ot beginming of the year £ 14 51
Add  Addmans duning the year #2 3600
Balance at end of the year 54151
& Represents farr value of guarantess given by the parent company
#if Represents interest acorued on | 2% I Jeeimable pref shares, chissified as finance cost, which 5 no longer payable at the time of redemption
(W) Sdherre apstlents cnil standingg acormnt
Balance ot beginning of the year Al
Add  Share based payment expense 176
Less Transfer 10 securities premum (7.55)
Balance ot end of the year 7862
The fair value of the aquity settled share hased pay wons with empl 15 dn & of Profit and Loss with correspondng credit 1o share option outstanding account
() € il reseriie
Balance a begmning of the year | 67
Balance ar end of the year 1.67
e _ -3
Capital surplus not pvadsble for distnbution and s expected to remain invested permanently
%) Secwriticd prcmium
Balance st beginning of the vear . 4,195 |9
Add  ssue of equity shares for cash 2,065 03
Add  issue of equity shares on account of conversion of 12% compulsory convertible « I preference shares 1,100 0
Add  Share ophons exerceied 755
Balance ot end of the year 7,367 T8

Secunties premium represents the éxcess consideration received by the Company over the face value of the shares issued to sharchalders: This will be utilised in sccordance with the spplicabls

provisions of the Compames Act, 2013

(vi) Retaimedd carmingy

Balance ot begmmning of the year (1067 30)
Add' Profit | (loss) for the year 359 63
Balance a1 end of the year !607_011

Retaned canungs represents the profits thar the Company has samed till date, less any dividends. or other distnbutions paid o shareholders.

(vt Chrhuee comprehe nstve. income

Balance at besmmng of the vear {1522)
Add Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax)
Balance ar end of the year
Onher comprek IO oy actuanal gam s Joss on remeasurement of defined benefit obligaton and return an plan pssets
Axat Asat
Borrowings Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
i) Now-courrent borrowings
Term-loans
Froms banks isecured) fa) 151 06 196
From others (s2cured) by 33431 L 373 64
Deposils
Ty corporare dipustts
From related parties (unsecured) (refer 1o note 39) (3] 51700 | 50,00
From others (unsecured) ) 30000 30000
Phepursits fromt shearchulders inrseentred) (2l Ri907 604 16
Onther loans
Laxcans from redatrves of divectors frefer noe 39) if) 000 T0.00
Total non-current borrowmgs (includung current matunities) 223144 1.500 76
Less  Current maturities of non-current borrowings {refer 10 note 21) bR E 41206
e — eRTo

(458 63)
(608.67)

(1522
!I.“ZI!

Asat
01 April 2016

13702
227

150.00
H00:00

AT1R)

70,00
165233
62822

1027 31
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Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(AN enntioinistn £ Jakhs, except for share dhara and i otherwse stated) *

Notes:

#) Term Loans from The Janvmu & Kashmar Bank Limited amounting 1o Rs, Nil { 31 March 2007 Nil, | Apnl 2016 s 128 17 lokhs) was secured by first & exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on entire
fixed assets both present and future of the Company. These limis were also secured by first charge on fixed assers of Omapac unit al Chandigarh of KDDL Limied (holding company) This was further secured
by the first and exclusive charge over land and buldmg. machmery and office equipmen of the Parwanoo umit of KDDL Limited (holdmy company ) excluding the assets purchased afler | Apnl 2005 Thes loan
was dlso gunranteed by the Holding Company (KDDL Limited) and the director of the Company The lpan was repayable i 60 monthly mstallments of Rs |,583,000 each hately from 11 N b
2001 The rate of interest was 12.25% per annum and outstanding amount as on 31 March 20016 was repard in 9 i during the previvus year ended 3| March 2017

Velucle loans amounting 1o Rs 15106 ( 31 March 2017 Rs 296 lukhs; | April 2016 Rs 8 85 lakhs) are secured azamnst lvpothecation of the specified vehicle purchased from proceeds of the sad loan The
rate of interest on vehicle loans varies fram 8.23% 1o 11 76% per aanum ( 31 March 2007 10,00 10 11 76%, | Aprl 2006 1105 10 12 708} The above loans are repavable in monthly Ul wathin a
penod of next two 1o five years as per fepayment schedule

by The loans from others include loan taken from Indiabulls Housing Fmance Limited The same = secured by exclisve mortgage and charge on personal praperty of the director and relatives of the director of the
Camparry. Thess limits are also cunranteed by the holding company, the dhrector of the Company and relatives of the director The rate of interest varies fram 11% to 12 75% per annum  The original Loan of Rs
450 Takhs raken m March 2014 will be repad in 120 monthly mstalments and Rs S0 lakhs 1aken in March 2014 wall be repaid in 36 monthly instalments along with interest. The loan owstanding as on 31 March
2008 15 Rs 33431 (31 March 2017 Rs 371 98: | April 2016 © Rs 402 42) and Rs Nil (3] March 2017 Rs | 66, | Aprl 2006 Rs 20.28) respectively which will be rapaid as per repavment schedule

©) Inter corporate deposit from related parties carry an interest rate ranging betwisen | 0% to 6% (31 March 2017 14% to 16%, 01 April 2016 4% 10 |6%) per snnum and the same 15 repavable within 3-36
manths (31 March 2007 within 12 months, 01 April 2006 wathin 0-24 manths)

d) Inter corporate deposit from others carry an interest rate ranging between 13.5% 10 14% (31 March 2017 12% to 14%, 01 April 2016 14% to | 7%) per annum ond the same are repayable as per the repaymment
schedule within twenty four months

¢€) Deposits from Shareholders carry interest rate ranging between 8% 10 12 5% (31 March 2017 10 5% to 12.5%; 01 Apnl 2006, 11% to 12 5% ) per annum and carmies a maturity period from 3 1o 36 months
fromi the respective date of depasts

) Unsecored loans from relative of directors canry an interest eate of 12 5% (31 March 2017 12.58%. 01 April 2016 12 5%) per annum and s repayable within 30 months

As at Asat Asar

i) Crerrent horravingy 31 March 201% 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Lo repayable on demand
- From banks (secured)* () 135712 4.5959% 462108
Other Loans
-Buyer's credit (secured) (hi 67746 46732 IR5 08
-Loan from others {secured) [ - = 0000
-Redeemable preference shares 1l - 300 00 -
~Deposis from shareholders (insecured) (k) 64 26 -

4 098 B4 5,3631.27 5,406, 10
* includes Rs | 50000 (31 March 2007 Rs Nil 1 Apal 2016 Rs Nil) being the amount unutilized out of equity shares issued fowards preferential allotment,
Notes

1) Loan repayable on demand from [DB1 Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1,024.6 fakhs (31 March 2017 Rs 1, 9098 lakhs, 1 April 2016 Rs 1,681.0 lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first parn
passu charge on all the current nssets of the Company hoth present and future and second parn passu charie on the fived assets of the Company both present and future These lmuts are also secured by
exclusive morgage and charge on all the immovable fised assets of the 1ol room umt (Ezeny of KDDL Limined (Holdmg Company) at Bangalore These himits are guaranteed by the Holding €ompany (KDDL
Limited), personal guarantees of director of the Company and relative of the director. The rate of iterest as on 31 March 2018 vanes from 11 28% 10 11 $0% (31 March 2017 11 50 % 10 13%: 1 Apnl 2016
13%) per anrum

Loan repayable on demand from The Jammu & Kashmn Bank Limated amountmg 1o Rs 7989 lakhs (31 March 20017 Rs.740 0 lakhs, | April 2006 Rs 876 1 lakhs) are repayabhe on demand and are securad
by first pan passu charge on the stock and recervables of the Company. These limits are abso secured by exclusive firs charge on assets of Omapac unit ot Chanchgarh of KDDL Limited (Holding company) This
i further secured by the first and exclusive churge over land and building hunery and office equip of the Parwanoo umt of KDDL Limited These loans are also gusranteed by the Holding Company and
personal guarantess of the director of the Company. The rare of nterest a5 on 31 March 2018 vanes from [1 40% ro 1240% (31 March 2007 12:20% to 12.30% | April 2016 12 25%) per annum

Loan repavable an demand from Bank of Maharashtra amounting to Rs 18336 lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs 1,946.2 [akhs, | Apnl 2006 Rs 2,064 U lakhs) are repayable on demand and are secured by first
parn passy charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the company  These limits are also secured by 360000 shares of holding company held by Sh ¥ Saboo, Managing Director of the
company and second parri passu charge on entire fixed nssets of the Company Further, these limits are also guarantesd by the Holding Company, personal guarantes of director of the Company and relative of
the director, The rate of interest 25 on 31 March 2008 ks 1 1-50% (31 March 2087 |1 50 %, 1 Apnl 2006 13 20%) per annum

h) Buvers credit frony IDBI Bank Limited amounting 1o Rs 677 46 lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs 467 3 lakhs, | Apn| 2016 Rs 385 0 lakhs) are repavable on demand and are secured by first purm passu charge on all
the curtent assets of the Company both present and future and second parn passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company both present and future These limits are also secured by axchisive morngage and
charge on all the immovable fixed assets of the tool room w (Eigen) of KDDL Limted (Holding Company) at Bangalore These limits are gusranteed by the Holding Company (KDDL Limned). personal
guarantees of director of the Company and relative of the director. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2018 1 11 85% (31 March 20017 1185%. 1 Apnl 2016 13% per nrmnwm)

1) The loan from others represent boan taken from Mavenck Fnancial Services Pyt Lid. and the same was secured by shares and securities of holding company held by Sh Y Saboo, Managing Director of the
Compuny. These limits were also secured by the personal guarantes of director of the Company The rate of interest was 15% per annum and the same was repaid n the previous year ended 3| March 2017

) Dunng the previous viear ended 31 March 2017, 3,00,000 12% el 4 bl e shares were issued as fully paid up with a par value of Rs 100 per share (| April 2016 ml) The redeemable

p e shares were fatonly redesrable at par on 23 August 2017 and have been redeemed during the current year

k) The fixed rate of imterest on deposit from shireholders for matunty period of | year in the eurrent year is in the range of 10 0% ta 10 30% per annum {31 Mareh 2007 Nil, | Apnl 2016 Nl




Ethos Limited
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(AN cmetnnty in & Skl except for shore data and of otherwise sared

As at As ai As al
1%, Provisions Note 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2007 M April 2006
Current Nun-carrent Current Non-current Current Nom-current
Pravision for enplovee benefis
Provision for gratuity 7 - 6155 - 4845 - 1348
Provesion for compensated absences 37 2169 8069 297 nm i 64.21
269 142 24 297 120.18 221 T7.69
As al Asar As at
20, Trade payables®* 31 March 2008 3 March 2017 01 April 2016
- Micra, small and medium enterprisss # - - -
= Trade payables 1o related parties (Refer 1o note 39) GBG B% 67465 189060
= Other trade payables 7,036 48 5,789.64 684 22
7.723.17 6,464 20 687322
# There are no micro, small and medium enterprises. 1o whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 davs as at the end of the year The infy us required 1o be disclosed in
refaton 1o micro, small and mediom P has begen d d to the extent such parties have bean identified on the basis of information availahle with the Company
Asat Asal Asat
Particulars 31 March 2018 3 March 2007 01 April 2016
ta) The principal amount remaming unpaid 10 any supphier an the end of the vear - -
(b) The interest due on prneipal amount renuning unpaid (o any supplier as ot the end of vear = =
(e) The lmauu al'lmr.rm pasd by the Company in terms of section |6 af the Micro, Small and
Mad ! Act. 2006 { "MSMED Act™). along with the amount of povment
made 10 lhe supphcr bm«bnr.i the appomted day during the year 3
12} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in makmng pryment (which have
been paid but bevond the appomted day duning the vear) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED act =
(1) The amount of mterest sccrued and remaimmg unpaid ot the end of year - - &
() The amount of further mierest remammg due and pavable even i the succeeding vears, until such
date when the imerest dues above are actually pad 1o the small emterpnise, for the purpose of
disallowance ns a deducnble expense under the MSMED Act -
** The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity nsk related 1o trade payables s disclosed i note 35
Asat As As at
21, Ovher financial liabilities 31 March 2018 31 Munch 2017 01 April 2016
Derivative financial msteument - 2097 -
Current matunties of non-current borrowings 1 12205 432 06 N5 12
Capitnl creditors 04 52 208 648
Sularies, wages and bonus and other employee payable 3399 17287 AL 30
Inrerest ncerved but not due on borrowinys 107,68 FENE] 1775
1,678.34 #1713 1,051 12
Asat As As at
22, Other curvent linbilities 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Diferred revenue 18171 14377 13522
Statutory dues 44,00 393 67 154,44
Advances from customers T2748 56178 198 87
. 100319 1,009.22 GAE 53
Az at Asat Asat
23, Cuorrend tax habilities {net) 31 March 2008 31-Mar-17 3-Mur-16
Provigion for meome tx (et of advance tax Rs 17.92. 31 March 2017 Rs. 6347 -
Nik. 01 Apuil 2016 Rs. Nl
6347 -

|
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24, Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Sale of products (net of applicable tax) 35367 87 32.260.47
Sale of services 168.13 175.83
Other operating revenies 73.19 33,11
35609.19 32.489.41
25 Other income
Year ended Year ended
Interest mcome under the effective interest rate method on - 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
-fixed deposits 1136 837
-secunity deposits ot amorised cost 82139 301
Foreign exchange gan (net) - 11737
Miscellaneous 8201 1677
175.76 207.62
* mcludes msurance clam recerved of Rs Wil (previous vear Rs 158 lakhs)
26, Purchase of stock-in-trade
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Purchases during the year 27,309 88 15.,676.27
27309.88 25,676.27
27, Changes In inventory of stock-in-trade
Yeur ended Year ended
31 March 218 31 March 2017
Opemng imventory 16,898 58 16,5200 04
Less: Closing imventory 17,103 29 16,898 58
(Increase) i inventory : (204.71) '131'7.64!
28.  Employee benefits expense
Yeur ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Salares, wages and bomus 2,033 .50 .82 B
Contribution to provident and other funds 11409 95 04
Share based payments 1178 2310
Staff welfare expenses 109 hd 89 14
2,268.99 2,037.04
29, Finance cost
Year ended Yeur ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest expense on financial hubihnes measured ot amonised cost G189 790,74
Dividend on redeemable preference shares classiied as financial lisbiliy measured a amorused cost 14 40 2160
Other borrowing cost 24 06 2.3
658.27 B14.67
30, Depreciation and amortisation expense
AT Year ended Yenr ended
31 Murch 2018 31 March 2017
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 3 304 18 363 81
Amortisation of other mtangihle assets 4 1318 1523
407.36 379.04
31, Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Power and fuel 104 50 FI194
Service cost expense ) T AD 41 64
Insurance 4277 48 89
Rent (net of reimbursements) (refer note 43) 242046 274018
Rates and tuxes 12:36 19.73
Repar and mamtenance 9% 80 160,55
Forelgn exchange loss (net) 196 50 -
Travelling and conveyvance 21512 151 46
Adver it and sales 1 I Tnre2 85589
Directors sitting fees 1697 14 61
Printing and stationery 1413 13 68
Recruitment expenses 2403 1664
Telephone and telex 63 96 1259
Postage and telegram 15537 124.95
Legal and professional fees * 191 92 119.62
Bank charges 29276 296,52
Advances / deposits wnitten off 55 84 | 46
Propenty, plant and equipments wiitten of (net) 34.39 6751
Miscellancous expenses 9222 151.67
4,824.21 &DIZ.-B

*Includes payment to auditors {excludmg raves as applicable)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year eaded 31 March 2018
FAl et in 2 fakbs, cxcep for share data and if othenvise stared)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
As auditor
Statutory audit 12.00 1200
Limited review of specml purpose quanterly results 6.75 6.75
In ather capaciry
Certification work 330 460
Remmbursement of expenses 088 134
2293 24.69
32, Tax expense
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
) Invame jax vecogmised in statement of profit and foss
Current tax £1.39 -
-Deferved tax 1993 23611)
Total tax expense recognised m the current year 12132 (236.11)
The ahove tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Profit before tax
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34 94% (previous year 30 90%) 182.02 1261 04)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible m detenmining taxable profu 201 18.08
Effect of merease 0 tax rate (63 10) 3
Others 4 (66U} 6 86
1 tax ex! es recognised in sta t of profit and loss 121:32 123611!

The 1ax rate used for the current year reconciliation above 15 the corporate tax rate of 34 94% (previous vear 30.90% ) povable by corporate entities in India on
taxable profits under the Indwn 1 law

b Income dux expense recogmed i other comprrehensive income

Year ended Year ended
J1 March 2018 31 March 2017
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities)
Arsing on mcome ad exprinses recognised e ather comprefensive mcome
-Remeasurement of defmed benefit obhigation (2.16) .81
Tatal income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (2.36) 6.81
Bafircation of the income tax recogmised in other comprehensive income mio:-
Irems thar will not be reclassified 10 profn or loss (2.30) .81
Ttems that may be reclassified o profin or loss e =
(2.36) 681
33 Earnings per share
Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
A Basic earmings per share
i Profit flossy for basic carning per share of Ry 10 cach
Profit | (loss) for the vear 304 63 (608 67)
Less - dividend on convernible preference shares, net of tax 126.58 30114
27305 (90981}
v Weighted average mumber of vyuity shaves for (hasic)
© Upening Balance 13.203.805 12,356,801
Effect of fresh issue of shares Ba7.611 167 506
14,071 504 12,724 307
Basic Earmings per share (face value of Rs 10 each) |94 (715)
B [ilured eamimgs per share
1 Protis - floss) for dilured earning per share of R, 10 cach i 39%63 {6U8.67)
1 Wesghted averuge number of gty shares for diluted
Opening Ralance* 13,203,895 12,356,801
Effect of fresh rssue of shares® 1,945,820 2,044,439
15,149,715 14,401,240
Diluted eamings per share (face value of Rs 10 each) | 54 {7.13)

¥ For the year ended 31 March 2018, 171,750 options and 576,923 convertible preference shares {31 March 2017, 231,500 options and 1,676,933 convertible
preference shares) were excluded from caleulation of diluted wenghied average number of equity shares as their effect would have been anti-dilutive
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Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(AN cmagnnirs i & fak

M

v evcepl for share deta amd if Qe stated) '

Explanation to transition to Ind AS
As stuted m Note 2a)), these are the Compaiy's first fi | ed in d with Ind AS For the vear ended 31 March 2017, the Company had prepared its il n
accordance with Companies (A p Standards) Rules, 2006, noufied und.:r Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act {previous GAAP)

The accounting policies s21 out in Notz 2 have been apphed in preparing these financial siatements for the vear ended 31 March 2018 uicluding the comparative information for the year ended 31 March
2017 and the opening Ind AS bulance sheet on the date of transition ve 01 Apnl 2016

In preparing its Ind AS bihw:r: sheet as at 01 Apnl 2016 and m presenting the comparative information for the vear ended 31 March 2017, the Company has adjusted I 4 previously m
financial fin | with previous GAAP This note explains the prineipil adjum madde by lhe Compamy in i itk financil preg | in dance wath
previous GAAP, md hnw the ransinon from pmrmuu GAAP 0 Ind AS has affected the Company's | parsition. fi | perfi and uﬁh flovws

L Cpmiecnad excapiions avared
u) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect 1o continue with the carrymg value for all of its property. plant and equip s grised i the i i a% al the date of transion 1o Ind AS.
menasured as per the proviaus GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition This exemption can also be used for mtangible assets covered by Ind AS 18 Intangible Assets

Accordingly, the Company has slected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intanmible assets at their previous GAAP canying value

Informeition relating to gross carrylng amount of assets and ac lated dey as on the ition dote as per previous GAAP is as follows
Total Property
Leasehold|  Plant and|  Furniture Office e Tatal i ibl

Asser category . ;. 1 Vehicles plant and v ¥

ip iy nnd fittings quip Phits ¢ ﬁ‘ul'rwm Assens
Ciross carrving amount asat 01 Apnl 2016 1,183 98 22723 102077 TR 13 6l 14 25N 2% 170.46 170 46
Accumulited depreciation as at 01 April 2016 723135 13787 45604 IR 39 1343 1,384 08 Ha o7 1607
Deemed cost as m 01 Apnil 2016 460 63 19 36 6473 LRI E ] b | LIBZT 4430 543

. Mandaiory cxcepitony

{a) Esnmates

An entity 4 estimiares in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition o Ind A% shall be consistent with estimates made for the ame date in accordance with previous GAAP (afler adustments (o reflect

any difference m accounting policles), unless there is oby ol that those WeEe i eror
Ind AS estimates as ot | April 2006 are consistent with the estimates as o the same date made in conformity with previous GAAF . The Company made for followng items in d with Ind
AS at the date of transition us these were not reguired under previous GAAP
« Investment in equity mstruments carried at FVOCT
- lmpairment of financial assots hased an expected credit lnss modal
- D of the d 1 value for financial instruments carried a amortised cost

(b} Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 yequimes an entity lo assess classification of fimancial assets on the basws of facts and circumstancis mlm; us gn the :Iar: of Further, the fard permis of fi i
assets accounted al amortised cost based on facts and cucumstances existug st the date of i P s impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the clasafication
of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measureément of fi I assets <l at I cost has bagn done retrospectively oxcept where the same 5
mmpracticable

(¢) De gition of fi | wssets and labil
Indd AS 1O reguires o first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS |04 prospectively for tr w an or after the date of ransaction 1o Ind AS, However, Ind AS 101
nnom a first time adopter to apply the de-mogmrm requirements i Ind AS 109 mmpecmrh frot the date of the entity s cb provaded that the mfe needed to-apply Ind AS 109 1o

Is assers and labil 3 wrised @5 a result of past Transaction was obtamed at the e of itally u forr those tr

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company hay elected o apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 169 prospectively from the date of transition 0 Ind AS
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Notes 1o the financial statements for the ended 31 March 2018
(Al amamis in & lakhs. cxcept for share data and of othenctse stared)

1L Reconcilitton af oquy

As at date of transition (1 April 2016) As al 31 March 2007
Transition to Ind Transition to Ind

Note Previous GAAP* AS Ind AS Previeus GAAP® AS Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-eurrent ussets
Property, plant and equipment 118217 - LAB2AT 448 33 - 4R 93
Capital work-in-progress IBT0 - 3870 T - 227
Other mtangible assers 3439 - 5439 4105 - 105
Financral assets - =
lnvestments - - - = = -
-Loans fiw) BRIT 07 [245.63) 391 45 BRa ThH (184 40) 237
“Onher financial assets 16817 - 1o8 17 B5 86 - 85.86
Income tax assets (net) 179,45 - 17945 209 Bo = 209.86
Deferred tax assels (net) (hs = 28304 28303 - 32506 32596
Other non-current assets fal.ic 34513 16972 S48 368 34 94 94 463 28
Total non-current assets 2,805.08 713 30220 2.563.51 43650 3.000.02
Current assets
Inventones i 16 3TE.68 14226 1652094 16,675 39 223.19 16,898 58
Financial assets
~Trade recervables ki 55543 (22224) 33319 509.95 (348 54) Ial41
-Cash and cash equivalems 16610 . 46610 I0F IR - 905 98
-Other bark batances 1768 - 17 68 - . s
-Loans fa) 444 53 {1130y 43323 3897 11430y 15767
Onher financial assats ] 173 958 ({553 .43 - 143
Other current asscts o) fed iy 143.21 7310 21631 114,33 T9.99 194 32
Total current assets 18.007.36 {8.60) 17.998.76 18,576.08 (56,66) 18.519.39
Totnl nssets 20.812.44 198,53 21.010.9 21,139.56 379.84 2151941
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capiial 1.235.68 - 1.235 68 1,320 39 - 1.320 39
Other equity
“Compulsory ibde cumulatve p o shares | 96001 - | 9660 0F 1,960 01 ] |, 960,01
~Deemed Equity contribution el - I4 51 4 81 - 1451 14.51
-Share option owstandmg account fed 0.42 3063 5105 0.68 RERFE] 440
~Capnial reserve 167 - 1.67 167 - 1.67
“Security Premsm 307990 = 3.079 90 419519 - 4,195.19
-Retmined eamngs (563.96) 10533 (458 63) (1. 31230 23502 (1.067.30)
-Remeasurement of defined henefit lbihty i + = - - (1520 (1522
Total Equity 571372 17047 5.884.19 6,165.62 318.04 6,483,606
LIABILITIES
Non-curvent liabilities
Fuancial batwhitres
-Borrowings 102731 - 1,027.31 1,068 70 - 1.068 70
Provisions 7769 3 TT.69 120 18 . 12018
Total nan-current liabilities —_ L1050 = 1.105.00 1,188.88 . LISSS8
Current liabilities
Financial Linbilities
~Borrowmgs 5400 10 - 540610 ° 5363.27 = 536327
-Trade payables 687322 - 6,873 22 6.464 26 - H464 29
-Oither financisl habilites rele (i 1051 72 . 1051 72 B74 56 4257 9713
Other current Labilites foll. 1) 569 87 118 66 HER 55 981 67 11555 Lo 22
Provisions fgl 928 190.60) 21 9929 (596 32) 297
Current tax labilities {net) > i = - = =
Total current lubilities 13.993.72 28,06 14,021.78 13,785.08 6150 1384688
Total 20812.44 198.53 21.010.97 21.139.58 179584 21,519,472

* WGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposs of this note
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Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(A amrenntres i & Kakls. exeopi for shore et omd o otherwie stated)

.

V.

Reconciliuton of wwial comprehensive income for the voar ended 31 Maroh 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Note Previous GAAP* Transition to Ind AS lnd AS
REVENLE
Revenie from operations (gl (i 32,624 16 (134.85) 31248941
Gther income il 133.51 75.11 207 62
Total income 32,786.77 (59.74) 32.697.03
EXPENSES
Purchase of stock-n-1rade 25.076.27 - 2567627
Changes in inventory of stock-m-trade thi (296 71) (80.93) (377.64)
Lmployee benefits expense fed. ) 2,035 96 | 0% 203704
Finance costs 791 46 2321 k1467
Deprecuation and amorisation expense 370 14 - A9y
Other expenses fuid, (el fgd 461910 0133 501243
Total expense 33,505.12 So.08 AR IR
{Lass) before tax (748.35) (96,42) (84478
Tax expense
~Current tax < .
<Deferred tx credn {h) (236,060 (236.09)
(Lass) for the year (748.35) 139.68 (608.68)
Other comprehensive expense
Jrcms o will e be vechassified sbsequently to profie or Toss
=Re-measurement of defined benefit plany fii - 122.03) (22.0%)
Tiene bax redatiog fo ftoms thar will nos be roclasyificd asequently 1o proficor foss
-Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (1) < 681 (]
Total other comprehensive expense - (15.22) [15.22)
Total comprehensive loss for the vear (748.35) 124,45 (623.90)

* LGAAP figures have been reclassified 1o conform fo Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note

Stavemernt of covl o

Other than effect of certam reclassificatons due (o difference in presentation, there was no matenal effect of cash fow from operating, financing, mvesting sctivities for all periods presented

Notes;

{a) Security deposit

Uinder the previous GAAR, interest free secunity deposits are recorded at ther transaction value On transition 1o Ind AS, these secunty deposits are remeasured a1 amortised cost usmg the effecive nterest rate method The

difference hetween the rransaction value of the deposit and amortised cost s resarded as prepaid rent and 1

15 accruid
The wmpuct ansmg from the change & an follows

Starement of Profic and Loss

o

Iy over the letse period Interest income, measured by the effective nterest rate method

Inerense ( | Decrease)

Other income (Notional interest income)
Other expenses (Notional rent expense]

Adjustment before income tax - Profit / (Loss)

Balance sheet

Fusancwl nssers -Loans- Non-current { Security Diposits)
Fmanceal assers -Loans- current (Security Deposits)
Other non-current nssets { Prepad expenses )

Orther current assets (Prepmd expenses)

Adjustment to retained earmings

Year ended
31 March 2017
5
{7946}
14.35)
Asar Asnt
31 March 2017 1 April 2016
(184 40) {245.63)
(11 30y (11 30y
10527 16617
4,78 79 46
(1565} ERTED

{b) Deferved taxes

Previous GAAP requires defrred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accountmg profits for the penod Ind AS 12 rRLUITes eAtITies 10 account fir
defierred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or kability i the balance sheet and its 1ax base. The apphcation of Ind AS 12 approach has

resulied u of i 1 tax on new v differences which was not required under Indian GAAP
The nbove changes (d 1) d the deferred tas labiity as follows

As it As it
Balance sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 2014
Deferred tax asset (net) 52596 28303
Adjustment to retained camings 5259 283,03
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Notes to the finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(AN s 0 < Takhs, excep fir share data amd (F utherwise stated)

(¢} Financial Guarantee
Under | GAAP, guarantee given by parent entity for securing loans taken by Company was not required 10 be recognised if no premium was paid to

its parent entity for providing this financial gusraniee . Under Ind AS, these guaraniees are required to be measured ar far value. Therefore, the
Company has recognised the fair value of the guarantee as an deemed equity infusion by the parent,

The impact arising from the change 15 as follows:

Increase !

(Decrease)

Yenr ended
S of Profit and Loss 31 March 2017
Other borrowing cost th.e1)
Adjustment before income tax - Profit / {Loss) (1.61)

As Asat

Balance sheet 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Other equity 14.51 14 51
Other non-current assets ( Prepaid expenses ) %.55 355
Other current assets (Prepaid expenses) - 1.61
Adjustment to retained earnings (10.96) (9.35)

(d} Derivatives

Under IGAAP. denvatives (forward exchange contract) were being restated at closing rate as on the reporting date Under Ind AS, these derivatives
are bemy measured at fnr value e valued at mark to market price (MTM)

The impact arising from the change is as follows:
Increase /
(Decrease)
Year ended

Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2017

Other Expenses ( Fair Value loss on foreymn exchange forward ) (19.55)
Adjustment before income tax - Profit / {Loss) (19.55)
As at As at

Balance sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Other current assets ( tised p on forward ¢ ) (4.67) (7.97)
Other current habilities (forward comtract payable) (28.22) (16,56}
Other financial assets - 958
Other financial labiiny 2097

Adjustment to retained earnings (1.42) 18.17

(e) Share based payment to employees

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of equity-settled employee share based plan were recognised using the intrinsic value method Under Ind AS, the
cost of equity settled share based plan is recognised based on the fair value of the options as ar the grant dare

_ The impact ansing from the change 15 us follows
Increase [ (Decrease)
Year ended

5 of Profit and Loss 31 March 2017
Employee Benefit expense (Share based pavment to employees) (23.36)
Adjusiment before income tax - Profit / (Loss) (23.36)
As at As ar
Balance sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Other equity (Share option cutstanding account ) 13.73 50,63
Adjustment to retained earnings (73.73) (50.63)




(N Dividend oh redeemable preference shares >

Under IGAAP, the 12% ¢ lative red ble prefi
declared

Under Ind AS, such redeemable preference shares have been classified as financial lisbility based on terms of contract. Dividend on such redeemable
preference shares have been recognized under finance costs

shures were classified as equity and dividend payable thereon wis recognised only when

The impact ansing from the change is as follows:
Increase /[ {Decrease)
Year ended

Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2017

Finance costs (dividend on redeemable preference shares) 2160
Adjustment before income tax - Profit / {Loss) 21.60
Asat Asat

Balance sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Other current financial liabilines (imerest acerued) 21.60 -
Adjustment to retained earnings 21.60 -

(g} Deferred revenve-customer loyalty program

The Company operates o loyalty points programme, which allows customers 1o accumulate points when they purchase products in the Company s
retnil stores. Under IGAAP, the Company creates a provision toward its liability under the custormer loyalty program.

Under Ind AS. consideration received is allocared between the products sold (watches) and the points issued, with the considerntion allocated 1o
points equal to their far value, Far value of the points is determined by applying a statistical analysis. The fair value of the points 1ssued is deferred

(h)

and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

The impact arising from the change is as follows:

Increase / (Decrease)

Year ended
Statement of Profit and Loss 31 Mareh 2017
Revenue from operations (8.54)
Other expenses (5.72)
Adjustment hefore income tax - Profit / { Loss) (2.82)

As at As at

Balunce sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Provisions- Current {customer loyalty provision) {96.32) 190.60)
Other curvent liability (deferred revenue) 143.77 135.22
Adjustment 1o retained earnings (47.45) (44.62)

Deferment of revenue recognition

Under Previous GAAP, revenue is recogmsed when the the seller has mansterred the property in goods. Under Ind AS, when the receipt of the
revenue from a particular sale 15 conbingent on the ultimate collecnon by the buyer from the ultimate sale of the goods then revemue is not recognised

as the entity is deemed to continue 10 retain significant nsks of ownerstap

The impact ansing from the above changes as follows

Increase /

(Decrease)

Year ended
Statement of Profit amd Loss 31 March 2017

* Revenue from operations (126.30)
{Increase) in inventory (80.93)
Adjustment before i tax - Profit / {Loss) (45.37)
As at As at

Balance sheet 31 March 2017 1 April 216
Inventornes 22319 142 26
Trade Recevables (38.54) (222.23)
Adjustment o r | earnings (125.35) (79.97)

{1} Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, re-mensurements 1 e actuarial gams and losses and the retumn on plan assets on the net defined benefit obligation are recopnised in
other comprehensive ncome mistead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these re-measurements were forming pant of the profit or loss for
the year. As a result of this change, actuanal loss (net of tax) amounting to Rs, 15.22 lakhs has been I m other comprehensive income

mstead of profit or lass. There is no impact on the total equity as at 01 Apal 2016 and 31 March 2017 \
V1. Total equity reconcilintion
As at AL at
Nate 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Reported earlier under previous GAAP 165 62 571372
() Security deposit {a) (15.63) (11.30)
Financial Guarantee (c) 3.55 516
Dervatives (d) (1.42)
Dividend on redeemable preference shares (f (21.60)
Deferred revenue-customer loyalty program f2) (47 45)
Deferment of revenue recogmition thy (12535
Tax adjusoments ib} 52596

6,483.66

—
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amenans (o 2 lakhs, except for shere date ard if otherwise siated)

35, Financial instrumenis - fair values and risk management

As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
L Financial instruments by category and fair values Note _:_.u.”nq_.hﬂ -~
N FVTPL Amortised cost  FVOCT | FVTPL Amortised cost Fvoct FVTPL  Amortised cost FvocCl
Financial assets
Non-current _
Investments () - 4294 - - - - - - -
Loans (b) - 91075 - - 70237 - - 0144 -
Other financial assets by - 215,03 - - 85 86 - - 168.17
Current
Trade receivables (a) - 645.62 - - 16l 41 - - 33320 -
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - 71891 - - 90508 - - 466.10 -
Other bank balances (a) - - - - - - - 1768 -
Loans
-Secunty deposit (b} - 36799 - - 35767 - - 43525 -
-Loan to employees by - - - - - - -
Other fimancial assets
-interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits (a) - 951 - - 143 - - 11.31 -
-Denvative financial mstrument () 2 2.80 - - - - - 9.58 » .
Total 2.80 2,910,785 - - 2,214.72 - 9.58 2.021.13 -
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings (c) - 110826 - - 1,068.70 - - 1.02731 -
Current
Borrowings (el - 4,008 84 - - 536327 - - 540610 -
Trade payables (a) - 7.12217 - - 646429 - - 6,873.22 -
Other financial liabilities
-Dervative linancial mstrument d) 2 - - - 2097 - - - -
~Current maturities of non-current borrowings (a) - 1.122.15 - - 43206 - - 62522 -
~Captal creditors (a) - 104 52 - - 2208 - £ 2643 -
-Salaries, wiages and bonus and other emplovee pavable (a) - 34399 - - 37287 - - 38230 -
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (a) - 107 68 - - 69.15 - - 17,75 -
Total - 14,609.64 20.97 13,792.42 - 14,358.35 -
Note:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term matunities 1s considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to the short tertm maturities of these instruments

(b} Fair value of non-current financial assets has not been disclosed as there 15 no significant differences between earmang value and far value.

(e) The fasr value of horrowings is based upon a discounted cash flow analyss that used the agegregate cash flows from prnincipal and finance costs over the life of the debt and current market interest rates.

{d) The fuir value of the denvative financial nstruments has been determined using valuation techmques with market observable inputs. The model incorporate various inputs include the credit quality of counter-partics
foreign exchange forward rates

(e) The mvestment in subsichary 1s measured at cost less impamrment losses

There are no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(AN amonnes i & fakh, except for share date amd if othepwise stated)

1. Financial risk munagement

(i) Hisk managemend framework

e Company s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establisk and oversight of the Company s risk fi k The Company s risk manag policies are established
1o wentify and analyse the nsk faced by the Company, 1o set appropriate nisk hmits and controls and tw montor riks and adherence 1o limits. Risk mamagement policies and systems are reviewed regularly
1o effect ¢t n market d and Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, mms to. mantain disciphne and eonstructive control
environment i which all employees understand their roles and obligations

The Company 's audit committee oversees how pli with Company 's risk managernent policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framewark
i relation to nisk fuced by the Compuny The audit is 1in s aversight role by internal audie Internal audit undertighes both regular and adhoe reviews of nisk management controls and

procedures, the result of which are reported 10 audit committee

The Company has exp 1o the followmy risks ansing from financial instruments
~Cradit risk (see (1)),

~Laguidity risk (see (n)),and

~Markel risk (see (1v)

(i ¢ pedie pivk

Credit risk s the nsk of financial loss 1o the Comp ifa or party ta n fi | instrument fails o meet its contractual ohligations The carrying amount of financial assets represents the

credit nsk and anises principally from the Company's recervable from customers and loans.

Frede peceivables amd Loans

Ihe Company 's retail business s pre-dommantly on cash and carry basis which s largely through credit-card collections. The credut nsk on such collections s mimmal, sinee they are primanly owned by
eustomers” card 1ssung banks. The Company has adopted a poliey of dealing with only eredit worthy counterparties in ease of mstituhonal customers and the credu nisk exposure for institutional
customers (s managed by the Company by credit worthiness checks The Company also carnes credit nisk on lease deposits with lmd#urds for store properties taken on leases, for which agreements are

signed and property possessions timely taken for store operations. The nsk relating 1o refunds after stare shut down 1s i i stul negs of appropriate legal actions, where
Necessary

The Company s axp of deling and Jisip have been I Further. Trade and other recervables conssst of o large number of customers, across geagraphies within India,
hence, the Comp i not exposed 10 1on risks

el cased casly eiprivadinis
The Company holds cash and cosh equivalents of Rs. 718 91 lakhs a1 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 Rs 905 98, 1 Apnl 2016 Rs 466 100 The cash and cash equivalents are held with scheduled banks

i) Lhgrcding risk

Liguidity risk 15 the nisk thar the Company will encounter thificalty in the ohl 4 wath s financial babiltes thar are settled by delivering cash or another (inancial assets. The

(_umpan\. s approach o manage ligudity 15 to have sufficient liguidity to meer s hiabilines when they are due, under bath normal and stressed circumstances, withour incurnng unacceptable losses or
risking damage 1o the Campany 's rep

M i the liguidity nisk bu g cash fow forecasts on a penodic basts and matunty profiles of financial assets and Tabil This g takes 1nto the biliy of

ensh and eash equivalents and add f @ | The Company will o fer varnous borrowings of leasmg aptions w0 masinmze hquidity and supplement cash

FEQuITETnEnts as necessary
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amownts in ¥ lakhs, except for share deta and if otherwise staied)

Exposure to ligutdity risk

The following are the remaimng contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and
mclude contractual interest payments

31 March 2018 Contractual cash flow
Carrying Tatal Less than 1 1-5 vears More than 5
amount year years
Non derivative financial liabilities
~Borrowingstimeluding current maturities) 6,330,227 6.330.27 5.221.09 1109 18 -
-Trade payables 172317 7.723.17 T.023.17 - -
~Capnal creditors 10452 104 52 104 52 - -
-Salaries, wages and bonus payable 34399 34399 34399 - =
-Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 107 68 107 68 107.68 - -
14,609.63 14,609.63 13.500.45 1.109.18 -

Dernvative financial habilities
-Forward contracls - . ~ » -

31 March 2017 Contractual cash flow
Carrying Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
year years
Non derivative financial liabilines
-Borrowings(including current maturities) 6. 86403 6.864.03 579532 1L017.79 50 92
“Trade payables 6,464.29 6,464.29 6464 29 - -
“Capital creditors 2208 22,08 2208 - -
-Salaries, wages and bonus pavable 37287 37287 37287 . -
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 69,15 69.15 60 15 - -
13,792.42 13,792.42 12,723.71 1,017.79 50.92
Derivative financial liabilities
-Farward contructs 20.97 2097 20 97 - F -
20,97 20,97 20.97 - -

Contractual cash Now

I April 2016 Carrying Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
amount vear vears

Non derivative financial habilities

~Borrowings(including current maturities) 7.058 63 7.058.64 6.031.33 909.02 11829

-Trade payables 687322 6873202 687322

Capttal creditors 2645 26.45 26 45 s -

-Salaries, wages and bonus payable 38230 382 30 382.30 & .

-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 17.75 17.75 17.75 - -
14,358.35 14,358.36 13,331.05 909.02 118.29

Dervative financial habilities
-Forward contracts - - - - =

(iv)  Marker Risk

a) Product price nisk

In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects penodical price increases across its retal product lines. Product price increases which are not in line
with the levels of customers™ discretionary spends, may affect the business/retail sales volumes, Since the Company operates in luxury category, the demand is
reasonably inelastic to changes in price. However. the Company continually momitar and coipares prices of its products in other developed markets as its
customers tend to compare prices across markets. In the event that prices deviate significantly unfavorably from the markets, the Company negotiates with its
principals for change of prices. The Company also manages the risk by offening judicions product discoumts to retail customers to sustain volumes. The Company
negotiates with its vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates substantially absorb the product discounts offered 10 the retail customers. This helps
the Company proteet itsell from significant product margin losses
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i

{ii)

Interesa rate risk

The Company is exposed 1o interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates Interest rate risk is measured by using the
cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowangs of the ('urmmy are prim:lp:ll\ denominated m rupees with a mix of fived and
floating rates of interest. The nsk i managed by the Company by 1 iy, b fixedd wnd floating rate bomowines The exposure of
the Company s borrowini to ierest rate chanpes as reported 1o the numgemem at the end of the reporting penod are as follows

Asat Asat Asatl
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 Apwil 2006
Fraed rate bomowings 2973106 2,268 0K 241758
Fhating rute borrowimngs 335712 4 595 05 4621 05
6,330.28 6.864.03 T058.63

Totevest vate sepsetivily amalyads

A reasonably possible change of 0 50 % in wterest rates at the reporting date would have affected the profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analyss
has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for Aoating rate habilities assummg the amount of abihity outsianding on the vear-end was
outstanding for e whale year

Profit / ( Luss) before tuy

Foar the year eodvd 31 March 2005 Strengthening Weakening
Interest rate (0. 5% movement) {16.79) a7

Fior the year embed 31 March 2007

Interest mite (0 5% movement) {229%) 2298
Currency rsk
The Company i exposed to currency risk 10 the extenl that there 15 msmitch between the currencies in which purchases are d d and the f |

currency of the Company The currencies m the which the Company = exposed to nsk are CHF, USD, FUR, $G0 The Company evaluates this nsk on a
resular basss and approprate nsk mitigating steps are takin, mcluding but pot limited. entering into forward contracts

Ioxpasnine o currency rivk

The summary guantiative dats about the Company’s exposure to currency sk a5 reported to the management of the Compary is as follows

31 March 2018 CHF USD SGD EUR
Trade pavables 216069 731 60 71 48 1212
Less Forward contract outstanding G687 80 - -
Net exposure of recogmised financial habidity 21640 6% 43,71 T1 48 3212
31 March 2017

Trade payables 1,568 91 A545 70 041 -
Less Forward contiact nummdmg - 499,70 - -
et ex of recogr I fishulity | 568 91 . 0.4 -

1 April 2016

Frade payables 665 71 421 43 3488 (A1)
Less Forward contract outstanding - 403 51 - .
Net exposure of ised fi I lability 465 71 1702 3488 01l

Sanstetviey amibyiy

A bly possible Iy {wenkenming | of CHE, USD, SGD. EUR agamst INR (2) al the end of the year, would have affected the mepsurement of
fi | instruments d d in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown bebow. Tlis analyss assumes that all other
varahles, in particular mterest rates, remain constant and iwnores any impact on forecast purchases

Profit [ {Loss) { before tax)

31 March 2018 Strengthening Wenkening
CHF (1% movement ) (21 61) 1161
S (1% movement ) i032) 032
EUR (1%4 movement) 0T 0Tl
LISEY-{ 1% movement ) 17.32) T32
31 March 2017

CHF (1% moveément) (1569 1569
SO 1% movement) s {018}
EUR (1% movement ) (w2 020
LISED ¢ 1% mevienent ) (4.71) 47

CHF. Swiss Franc USD: US Dell, SGB Smgapore Dollar FUR: Furo

Capital Management

Rk momagemenr

The Company's policy 15 to mantam & strongs capital base 50 as 10 mamtam myvestor, creditor and marke! confidence and 1o sustam future development of the
bhusi The the return on capital The Company monitors capital usimg a ratio of ‘sdiusted e debi’ o oral equiny’ For this purpose,

adjusted net debt is defined as wral borrowmis net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. Equity comprises all components of equity {as shown
in the Balance Sheet)

The Company's adjusted net debt o equity rano was as follows
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016

Total habilities 15821.22 1503575 1512678
lesy cash and cash equivalents (TIE91) {908 9E) {466.10)
Adjusted nel debt 15,102 31 1412977 14,660 68
Total equity B} 4,160 9% 6,481 66 5 BE4 |9
Adjusted net debit 1o equity ratio L6S .18 2.49
Dhividheads s recogp Fiat the eod of reporiimg pertod

31 March 2018 31 Maveh 2017
C lanve pr divachenid not i fon 12% liti 426,54 1,087 60
compulsory converible preference shares, 4% cumulative compulsory
convernble prefergngg shares ncluding dividend distibution tines
]

420.54 187,60

nis
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37, Employe benefits
f Asat Asat As
L Asscts and lisbilives relatmg 10 crployes bonefits 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2006
Now-carereni
Liabality for gratuity e i As 13,48
Linhility for compensated absences 80,469 —_— 7Ty — B2
142.24 120018 7769
urrent
Lankility for grotuity . - g
Liabtliy for compensated absences 268 297 e
YY) s YT
For detnils abent the relmted emplovee benafit expenses. refer 1o now no. 2%
11, Defined benelit plan - Gratuity
The emplnees’ gratuity fund scheme d by Life Cory of ludia s 8 delined bengli plan. The presemt value of pbligation = determingd based on acluarial
valuation using the Progectied Unil Credit Method. wiich recogmses cach period of service as gving rse (o add b unit of empleyee benelit ! and cach uml
soparately 1o build up the final obligaion The Company made srmual comtributions 1o the LIC of India of an smount advised by the 11T
The above delined beoelit plan exposes the Company 1o following nsks:
Brteven vty piak:
The defined benefit obliganon cnleulacd vses o discount re based on government bonds [ bond sields Ml the dofined benefit abligation will fend (o incrense
Sofary mflatiomn rek
Higher than expected mcreases in salany will increase the delined benelil obligation
Dempgrapimic rok
This 15 the rish of varibilin of realty due o uns ati nature of d that inehude manality, withdrawal, disability and retirement The effect of these deerements on
the defined bemefit obligation s nel straght Forward and depends upon the combmation of salary increase. discount rale and vesting enteria 0 s important fol ko overstate
withdrawals because in the financial annhsis the retirement boneflit of & short carcer emploves picall costs less per vear as compored 1o a long service cmplovee
The Compam activelh. monitors how the duration and the oxpecied vield of ihe imesments are matchmg the expected eash outflaws armny fram the emplover benefit
obhgauens The Company bas oot changed the processes wsed W manage 8 righs from previons penods. The fimds are managed by specinhised wam of Life Insurance
Corporition of ndin
a) Feting

Cirntunty is & funded benefit plan for qualifiing emplovees 100% of the plan assets are managed by LIC . The nssers managed are highly lguid m nature and the Company does
not eapect any sienific ot liguidis nsks
The expecied contribution o defined benc it plan i 20H18-2010 is insynificant

by Recenciliation of prosea vadie of defined bemefit obligasan i A '::I;ﬂl 3 Wi ';I':
Halance ar the bewmog of die vear UK A0 6710
Benelits paid LR (LR A
Current senvice cost iR 1640
lterest cost 787 4.70
Actuanad (enins) ¢ 23 Kecn] mother SV OOHE (R 7
lini the [ the year 9987 98.40
e A ; Asat Asut
o) Reermeifiaion of the present value of lan asers 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Bialance at e benninge of the vesr R sie2
Contnbutions paid into e ptan 523 517
Imerest Ineome ERI -
Benefits pad (houR) (1182)
Actuarial Gaind{losses) - (0 ddy
Rourn on plan asseis recognised i olber comprahonsive ingomes (387 3.8
Balance at the end of the year .52 4594
A Expense recoganived in profic or jo Yeuanivg VoWt el
: . 31 March 2018 31 March 2n7
Current service cost 222 144
Interest [ncome 4 00} =
Inberest cost 147 4.7
P .19
. e . § i Y W Yeur ended Year ended
o) Remeassrements rectnived in other comprefonsive i 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Actuarial (eant) /doss o delined benelit obliation (LG patix}
Retum on assets bess | (greoier) than discount mig 187 1350
16.37) 18.51
) Plem asers
LS of the plan assols are managed by LIC
; As As i Asal
) Actuartal assumpiions 31 Mareh 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Dhiscount rale (per demum ) ROy pa 7o pa i pa
Future salary growth rate (per ammum ) 500 pa Sfopa S00% pa

Assumpuons reganding fuure moriality are based on Indian Assured Lives Monalies (TALM) (2006-08} rmies
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Semsiivary analvaiy
Reasunably possible changes ot the reporting date 1 one of the relevant setuaral assumphions, holdmg other assumpltions constant, would have alfecied the defined benefi
ablijgation by the amaums shown below

Asat As
N March 2018 A1 March 2017
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Phscount rate (1% moyement) (1318} a4 [RANUTF] (™
Future salany’ growth rate (1% movemant i (1231 1223 (15.02) 1T

The above sonmtivity analvsis are based on o change o an assomption while holdmy all other assumptions constant In procice, is s onlikel o oceur, md changes m some ol

the i ma be lated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benelit obligation 1o significant petuanial sssumptions the same methods (present sabue of
delmed benefit oblgaton caleulated with the projecied umt eredit method o1 the end of the reporting penod) has been applicd as when cokeulatng the defined benefit habiluy
recoumised m he bolance sheetl.

The methods and rvpes of assumptions used m preparmy the sensitiviy anabyses dad not change compared 10 the prior period
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ML Delined contrbution plas
The Compam makes contobution, detérmined as a percentage of emplovee silaned, m respeet of qualifying emplosees towards Provident fund, which i o defined contribution
plan. The Compary has no obligation ather than to make the specificd contributions. The Compa bas rocognised Rs. %060 iprevious yeur Re 7500 durng the vear as oxponse
toswards contribuition 10 these plans

V. Share based pasiicils

n) Desirigtiny of sfyre-hased paimet grogmgenent
Av it 31 Mareh 208, the Compary has the fllowing share-based pmment arranpements

b) Enpiovec Stock COption Sclme foguitv-vetilees

I the Extracrdiary General Meeting held on 10003 2014, the sharchalders approved the tssue of eptions aol excecding 250,000 options under the Scheme btled "Ethos Emplosee
Stock Opuon Plan - 2013*
The ESCP allows the issue of optons 1o elgible emplovees of the Company Each aption comprises one underlyng oguity share

A per the Scheme, the Compensaton Commiiee grants the optons 1 the emplovees deemed chyible The exercme price of each option shall be cqual to U “Marke| Price” a5
defined i the Scheme The options gramted vest as follows Options mi be exercised within 3 yenrs of vesting

1300 of the options granted 1w the sehected emplovee shall vest on [at October, 20017 in cose there s continuation of his servce ull the date of vestmg

2 S0 on the first day of the financial sear sitbsequent (o the achicvement of billing of Rs $0.000 |akbs w any financial vear by the Company, subject 1o the continuation of service
Gl the daste of vesing However there shall remain o gap of minimum one year betwesn the date of grant and the date of vesting under this clause The compensalion commitice
shall declaie such date as and when it 15 tgered

The Companmy has i 1= l"umpmrlm Commitige meetmg on 04 08 2014 granted outstanding 3500 aphinns to emploves of the haldmg Compamy The above options have been
tsstred by the Cang in dance with the terms & conditions of the "Ethos Employee Stock Option Plan - 2013"

€ Revomelimion of swasianding share apnion

Particulars Daring the vear ended During the year ended
31 March 2018 3 Mareh 2017
Options Weighted Optiony Weighted
(numbers)  avernge excreise | (numbers) avernge exercise|
price per option price per aption
R {Rs)
Ethos Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2003
Option outsanding al the begmmng of the year 2IR.000 120 228000 20
Ciranted during the yeor - - . -
Vested dunng the vear > . . =
Esercised during the son 21,25 120 - -
Lapsed durng the vear 38 000 . - -
Options otitstanding at the end of the year 171,750 120 228000 120

Opptioss sy mlable for urant ol the end of vear - : - <
Opioms exercisable ot the cnd of te vear

No_ ol shares arising out of the oplons outstanding 171.75%0 120 228,000 120

Ethos Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2003

Opuon oulgonding ot the beginnmg of the vear 3800 i 3500 1240
Cirpnied dunng the vear . . . -
Vested dunng the year e > s
Exercised durmy the year - . . -
Lagised during the vear y . .

Optinns outstanding at the end of the year 3500 120 3300 124

Options avmlable for grant at the end of vear
Uplions exercmable at the eud of the vein - - - .
No_of shares wismg oul of the oplions outsianding 3,500 1260 1,500 120

The options outstanding as o 31 March 2018 have an exercese priee of Re 120 (31 Mareh 2017 R 120) and o weighied overage remiming contractunl W in the range of 2 16
10 2 86 vears (31 March 2007 3 1610 3 $6 years)

d) Fapense recognized in dlotement of profie ot iy

| Particulary Asat 31 March 2018 Asat 31 March 2017
Expense ansmy from equity -seitled share based payment ransucton 1170 2336

e} The ferte viatue of the opetons bas boen deeemied ynaee the Black Schodes meodel o the s wed e the measirearent of the grane-idiaie fare

Assumptions Asat 31 March 2018 Asat 31 March 2017
Faw value al grant dote IS 342608 35 R456 08
Share price at grani dale 120.00 1261 00
Exercise pnce 1201 0K 120,00
Risk Free Intercst Rate-KRL LK RLYEthos T BT a0t T6U T ol
Expected Life (vears) -KRLIKRLY Ethos 456416 3 8512 2444 S0 |
Expeeted Annunl Volatilin of Shares A0l Al




ETHOS LIMITED
Notes to the financial stmements for the year ended 31 March 2018
SAN amonmiy are i fndion Rupees, except for shore doia, ond of athervise siaed) ¥

38, Contingent liabilities, commitments and other matters
{ tes thie extent not prvvided for)

1 Clatms against the Comgrany ot acknowlecdged as debis. under dispone
Asat
Asat 31 March As at
31 March 2018 2017 31 March 2016
a) Income Tax matiers - 81.37 36.37
by Civil and Consumer matters 054 054 034
0.54 8191 36,91
i Arrears of fived comulotive  dividead on  12% commlatng 426 54 1,087 60 786 46
compulvory conventible  preference shares,  14%  comulative
compiilyory converiible  prefercice shares nclding dovidend
distrihurton tares
i) Comnitme s
-Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on 6631 5719 13.26
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)
-amount payable under non- cancellable leases 711258 362031 5,556/860
T178.89 3.677.49 5.580.12
w) During the year 2011-2012, pursuant fo the visit of the officers of Directorate general of Central excise mtelligence (DGCEL) m the premises of the

Company on 18 August 2011 the Company had reversed the mput service tax eredit of Rs 17,000,000 mn its service tax return which was availed by the
Company in previons vears. The above amount was reversed as per the opinion of the officials of DGCEL The Company, on the basis of legal opmion
obtained, 15 of the view that the Company s entitled to this inpur service tax credit Since, the amotnt was reversed ander protest and without prejudice
to the lewal rights of the Company, the Company has shown the above amount of Rs 7,000,000 reversed as clam receivable under the head *Long
term Joans and advances” Durmg the finanesal vear 2012-13, the Company had received a nobice from DGCEL whereby, the Company had been called
upon 1o show cause as to why service tax amounting to Rs. 603 452 winch had been shont pard and CENVAT credn amourting o Rs 24 276,671
wrongly avmled should not be demanded and recovered The Company had filed the reply to the show cause notice with the Commissioner-Central
Excise and Service Tux, Chandigarh. The authorty has confirmed the demand except Rs 663,452 Further | the nuthority has imposed a penalty of Rs
24276671 Bemg aggnieved against the order of Commssioner- Central Exvrse and Service Tax, the Company has preferred appeal with CESTAT and
the mutter 15 sub-judice with CESTAT. Chandigarh Due 1o the pending adjudication of the appeal, lability on this sccount has not been provided m the
acuorinis

v In addition, the Company s subject to lesal proceedings and elaims, winch have arisen in the ordinary course of | The Company's manag
does not expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determmed, will have o matenal and adverse effect on the Company's results of
aperitions or financial condition

39, Related parties

L Relared portics omd wamre of velated party velatienship, where contrel exisis:

Description of Relationship

Haldmg / Ultimate Holdmg Company
Subsidiary Body Corporate

Name of the Party

KDDL Limted (KDDL
Cogritwon Dignal LLP

Clther relared pavties weieh whim transacitons have taken plave:

Deseription of Relationship

Fellow Subsidanes

Entities over which sigmificant mfluence is exercised by rhe Key
Management Personnel

Entities over which sigmificant influence 18 exercised by relative of
the Key Munagement Personnel

Key Management Personnel and relatives

Diregtors

* DDTPL was a public himited

Name of the Party

Mahen Distibunion Limited
Pylama SA

Saboo Coatings Private Limited
VBL Innovanons Private Limited
Vardhan Propermes & Investment Limited

Deam Digitul Technology Private Limited (DDTPL) *
Saboo Ventures LLP
Saboo Housing Projects LLP

Mr Y Saboo (Managing director )
Relatives of Managing director
Mr R K Soboo

Mr Pranay Saboo

Mrs |sha Saboo

Mrs. Anuradha Saboo

Key Management Personnel
Mr € Raa Sekhar

Mr Amil Dhiman

Mr Aml Khanna

Mr N Subramaruan
Mr Rajar Kakar

Mr Sundeep Kumar
Mrs Neelima Tripaths

y till O June 2016 Waith effect from 02 June 2016, DDTPL s now a privaie limied com




ETHOS LIMITED
Notes to the linancial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2018

A amannts are i Indian Ropees, except for share daio. and if othenvise saatvd) »
[1]8 Frermscretions with reloved parties
Asat
Asat 31 March As at
Nature of t i 31 March 2018 m7 1 April 2016
a) Purchase of goods 1,129.38 360,22 093
- KDDL Limited 024 al2 0u3
= Mahen Distnibunon Limited - 1166 -
- Pylama 5A 1,129 14 348 44 -
bh) Sales of goods 1,028,89 11.27 33,00
- VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 31.50
- Saboo Costings Limited 008 aul 081
KDDL Lunned 504 479 069
= Dream Digital Technology Private Limited . 048 =
= Mahen Dismbution Limited 1,000 28 <
Suhoo Ventures LLP 207 -
- Mr RK Suhoo 8.00 = =
= Mr Y. Saboo 009 - -
- Mr Pranav Saboo 033 .
¢} Emplovee benefits pad 69461 . S2.89
Nhovet-term emplovee benefirs
= M Anuradha Saboo 602 6,05 290
- Mr Ruyu Sekhar 5508 46 57 4379
= Mr Al Dhiman 8 51 70 6.20
- Mr Y Saboo 5 1800 =
d) Personnel expenses Paid - - 9,59
KDDL Limited - - 959
€) Interest expenses 52.39 30.78 24.13
- Mr R K Saboo 875 575 832
= Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited 1710 1400 179
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 976 00 g2
= Mr Y Sahoo 249 - -
- Suboo Ventures LLP 14.14 - -
- Saboo Housing Projects LLP 015 - -
1) Rent expense 13.26 3554 46.55
KDDL Lamited 13.26 3554 a6 55
2} Rent Reverved 26,29 - -
- KDDL Limited 1770 . .
= Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 014 - .
= Mahen Distnbution Limited BAS . -
h) Publicity and advertisement T1.48 286,60 283,57
Dream Digital Technology Privae Limited 6548 27270 28270
- KDDL Limited 6 00 £ 90 0 86
* This figure includes an amount of Rs. 63 00 lakhs { 31 March 2017 - Rs. 279 7 lakhs,
| April 2006 R 244 8 lakhs) which has been reimbursed by brands
1) Retmbursement of expenses meumed on hehalf of Ethos Limited 1539 9,79 20,08
« KDDL Limited 1251 578 2008
- Dream Digital Technology Private Limited 284 . .
1) Retmbursement receved for expenses 8.64 2.68 =
- KDDL Limited 573 208 -
Dream Digital Technology Private Limited * . 1584 - -
- Mahen Distnbution Limited 097 - =
k) Transfer of Fixed assets = .64 =
KDDL Limited - 464 -
1} Director Fees 16.80 1135 10.31
“MrY Saboo 375 = e
-Mr Pranav Saboo - 120 -
“Mr. Aml Khanna 490 140 526
“Mr. N Subramanian 430 375 ja7
-Mr Rmat Kakar .65 | &5 060
-Mr Sundeep Kumar 1.10 105 -
~Mrs. Neelma Trpatin 1.10 030 -
-Mt. Jan Vardhan Saboo = - 0356
-Mr. Ashish Bagrodia - - 022




ETHOS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year eaded 31 March 2018

fAl cmomres are in Indian Rupees, exceps for shave data, and if othetwive stated) b
Asat
Asat 31 March As at
Nature of transactions 31 March 2018 2017 1 April 2016
m) Loan taken 106700 - 170,00
- Mr R K Saboo = - - 00
= Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited 51000 - 10000
Dream Digital Technology Priviate Limited 30,00 - -
- Mr ¥ Saboo 10000
= Saboo Ventures LLP 400.00 -
- Saboo Housing Projects LLP 700 -
nj Loan pmd 650,00 - -
- Vardhan Propernes & Investment Limited 600.00 - -
Mr Y Saboo 56000 - -
o) Investment made during the yem 42,94 - -
- Cognition Dagital LLP 429
P} Pavment made on behalf of the company - 324 1.0
Muhen Distibution Limited - 324 101
) 12% Cumulative redeemable preference shares issued - 300,00 -
- KDDL Limited - 300,001 -
1) 12% Cumalative redeemable preference shares redeemed Jo0.00 - =
- KDDL Limited 300,00 -
s) Interest on 12% redeemable preference shares 1440 2160 -
- KDDL Limited 1440 2160 -
1} Fmancial guarantce expenses 0.50 1.61 -
- KDDL Limued 050 | 61
u) Equity shares issued / converted 196.83 84,71 7769
- Mr. Raa Sekhar - . 077
- KDDL Limied 171 98 M7 To 92
< Mr Y Saboo 10.59 F -
- Mr Anil Khatina 003 - .
= Mr R K Saboo G 08 - -
< Mrs Ammadhn Saboo 227 - -
= M N Subramanimn 27 - -
* Including fesh equity shares allotted & 12% cumulanive convertible preference shares 136,363
v) Share premmm recerved 2,428.67 1L,115.29 1,030.10
- Mr Raja Sekhar - - 702
= KDDL Limned 217802 1.115:29 1,023 08
- Mr R K Saboo 2091 - -
- M Y Saboo 107 40 . %
= Mrs Anuadha Saboo 2293 - -
= Mr Aml Khanna 688 - -
- Mr N Subramanion 2273 - -
* Including premuum on equity shares allotted & on conversion of
1 2% cumulative convertible preference shares
w) Chumrantees wiven on behall of the Company - 600,00 1,225.00
- KDDL Lumited - 20000 27500
- Mr R K Saboo - 200 00 27500
= Mr Y Saboo . 200 00 67500
L8 Cluistanching halanees as ar vear end
As at
Asat 31 March Asat
Particulars 31 March 2018 w7 1 April 2016
Payibles 686,69 674,66 188,99
- Dwream Dngntal Technology Private Limited 1238 2878 107 63
KDDL Limited 41 64 [T ™22
= Vaurdhan Properties & Investment Limited - - 314
= Mahen Distribution Limited = 461 &
- Pylana SA 63267 30581 .
Recévables f Advances 51575 - 27,58
- VBL Innovations Private Limited - - 27.58
Mahen Distribution Limited 515.75 - -
Investments made 42,94 - =
= Cogmtion Digital LLP 4294 -
Secunity deposit given 6,77 6,77

= KDDL Limited 677 677




ETHOS LIMITED y
Motes to the finamcial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008
(AN e are in Indian Rugeex, excep for share 8ava, and if otherwive sioned)

As at
As at 31 March As at]
Particulirs 31 March 2018 2017 1 April 2016,
12% Cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares® - 4949.98 374.99
- KDDL Limited . 150100 1501 00
- Mr R K Saboo - 1000 00 TO0F (0
- Mr ¥ Saboo - 99 99 9999
Mrs: A Saboo - 2500 25,00
= Mr. N Subramianian - 2500 -
- Saboo Coatings Private Limited (transferred to Saboo Ventures LLP) - Q099 -
*Converted into equity shares
1 2% Cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares issued - 00,00 -
- KDDL Limited - 300,00 -
12% Cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 20000 20100 20100
- KDDL Limited 25.00 2500 2500
= VBL Innovations Private Linoted 2600 2600 26.00
- Dream Dagital Technology Private Limited 100 S0.00 50,00
- Mr RK Saboo 60,00 B4 00 Gl 00
Mr ¥ Baboo 2500 2500 2500
Mrs. A Saboo 5500 1500 1500
Equity Share Capital 1,319.64 1,085,585 997.97
- Muhen Distribution Limited 22032 209:32 22932
- KDDL Limited 102235 B5037 765 66
- Mr Y Saboo 1251 192 192
- Mr C Raya Sekhar 1 06 LoT 107
Mr R K Saboo 949 - e
Mrs. A Saboo 2:27 - -
Saboo Ventures LLP 3227 - E
- Vardhan Properties & Investment Limited 500 -
M, N Subramanian 514 287 =
- Mr. Anil Khanna 063
Unsecured loans . 637,00 2240.00 220,00
- Dream Digital Technology Private Lumited 10 00 3000 5000
« Viurdhan Properties & Investment Lonited 1 00 1640 00 160 00
= Mr R K Saboo 70,00 000 7000
= Mr Y Saboo 50,00 - -
Saboo Ventures LLP 400 00 - -
Saboo Housmg Projects LLP 700 - -
Dresmed capital contribution 50.51 - =
= KDDL Limited - 12% cumulative redeemable preference shires 3000 -
KDDL Lumited - fimancial guarantee 1451 - -
Cluaraniees taken by the company 17292.24 17,449.56 17,702.14
- KDDL Limited 596931 0,008 b4 5985 87
- M RK Saboo 501931 305864 4,907 70
- Mr Y Saboo 596931 6,008 64 6,385 87
- Mrs |sha Saboo 134 31 37364 42270
¥ Termy el conditions
All tramsactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevanl i arm s length transactions and within the ordinary course
of business
40, Segment information
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of trading and sale of watches and related s to retall cost within India

The Board of Directors of the Company, who have been dentified as being the ehief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluate the Company's
performance and allocate resources based on the analysis of vanous performance mndicaors of the Company as & single umt - Accordimgly, there 15 no
reportable segment or any entity wide disclosures which are applicable 10 the Company

41. Additional information- Reconciling Gross Sales (including billing under consignment arrangement and Sales tax / Goods and services tax)
with met sales: .
As at
31 March Asat

2018 31 March 2017

Sales (gross meluding Sales tax / Goods and services tax) 42021 47 EGEELE 1]
Less consignment sales . 428
Less Sales tax / GST 6,485 47 3.999.23
Net sales 35,536.00 32,436,530

The Company ‘s sales model comprises of outnght sales of purchased goods 1o customers as well as tems placed on o conmgnment basis with the
Company, though tilled by the Company. As a revenue recogmbion policy, g sales are not part of the Company™s sales m the Statement of
Profit and Loss since only the related commission ncome forms part of the ather operating income




ETHOS LIMITED ;

Naotes 1o the financial sintements far the year ended 31 March 2018

AN monmnes iore an Inchon Rupsees, exceps for shave dave, and §f othern ise stated)

42, The specified bank notes (SBN ) as defined under the notification issued by the Mimistry of Finance, Depariment of Economie dated U8 November, 2016
are no longer in existence. Hence the Company has not provided the corresponding disclosures as preseribed i Schedule 11 1o the Companies: Act,
2016, The disclosuree of SBN made m the financial statements for 31 March 2017 15 s follows:

Particulars SBNs* Other Total
denomination
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 430,59 688 93747
(+) Permitied receipts - 506.76 50676
(-} Permitted payments - - -
(=) Amount deposited m Bank 930.59 4281 1,373 40
Closing cash i hand as on 30 D beer 2016 - TORY 783

*For the purpose of this diselosure, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided i the netification of the Govemment of
Indsa, m the Mimstry of Finance, Depariment of Economic Affars number § O 3407 (E) dated 8 November 2016

43, The Company has taken o number of showrooms, warchouses under operating lease arrangements, with an option of renewal at the end of the lease term
and escalation clauses i some of the cases Lease wwrm ranges from 6 months 1o 3 years Lease payments (gross of reimbursements) charged during the
year io the Statement of Profit and Loss aggregate (excluding taxes as applicable) Rs. 2,553 75 (previous vear ended 31 March 2017 Rs 2,548 04)
[including Rs 264 44 wowards cancellable lense (previous venr Rs 444 71)]

Asat
As at 31 March As at
Future minimum lease payments due 31 March 2018 2007 01 April 2006
Withm one year 1,839.25 1,300,101 1,553 15
Later than one vedr and not Tater than five vears 4,220 60 2,230.55 3,700 96
More than 5 years 1,043:.72 83,65 JOL75
Total 7.112.57 3,620.31 5,556,860
As per our report of even date attached
lor BS R & Cou LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ethos Limited
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